#### FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Afficient Academy<sup>sm</sup>
Afficient Academy Of America, Inc.
A Delaware Corporation
1054 S. De Anza Blvd, Suite 201.
San Jose, Ca 95129
(408) 642-1012
Email:Franchise@Afficienta.Com
WWW.AFFICIENTA.COM

The franchisee will operate an Afficient Academy Learning Center business. This Disclosure Document describes the Afficient Academy Learning Center opportunity we offer. See Item 1 of this Disclosure Document for further details.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, the initial fees for an Afficient Academy Learning Center franchise are a \$1,000 franchise fee and a \$500 per person training fee. The estimated initial investment ranges from \$46,630 - \$141,540. Consult Items 5 through 7 of this Disclosure Document for further details.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. **Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.** 

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Dilip Acharya at 1054 S. De Anza Blvd, Suite 201, San Jose, CA 95129, (408) 627-7590.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: March 21, 2023

## **How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document**

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more information:

QUESTION	WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION
How much can I earn?	Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this information from others, like current and former franchisees. You can find their names and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit C.
How much will I need to invest?	Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor or at the franchisor's direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you must use.
Does the franchisor have the financial ability to provide support to my business?	Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial statements. Review these statements carefully.
Is the franchise system stable, growing, or shrinking?	Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of company-owned and franchised outlets.
Will my business be the only Afficient Academy business in my area?	Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the franchise agreement describe whether the franchisor and other franchisees can compete with you.
Does the franchisor have a troubled legal history?	Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its management have been involved in material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.
What's it like to be an Afficient Academy franchisee?	Item 20 or Exhibit C lists current and former franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their experiences.
What else should I know?	These questions are only a few things you should look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure document to better understand this franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.

#### WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW ABOUT FRANCHISING GENERALLY

<u>Continuing responsibility to pay fees</u>. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are losing money.

**Business model can change**. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

<u>Supplier restrictions</u>. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy on your own.

<u>Operating restrictions</u>. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

<u>Competition from franchisor</u>. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

**Renewal**. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

#### **Some States Require Registration**

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit D.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

#### SPECIAL RISKS TO CONSIDER ABOUT THIS FRANCHISE

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

<u>Out-of-State Dispute Resolution</u>. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in California. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in California than in your own state.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State Specific Addenda" (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>
ITEM 1	THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES	1
ITEM 2	BUSINESS EXPERIENCE	2
ITEM 3	LITIGATION	3
ITEM 4	BANKRUPTCY	3
ITEM 5	INITIAL FEES	3
ITEM 6	OTHER FEES	4
ITEM 7	ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT	6
ITEM 8	RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES	8
ITEM 9	FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS	9
ITEM 10	FINANCING	11
ITEM 11	FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING	11
ITEM 12	TERRITORY	15
ITEM 13	TRADEMARKS	16
ITEM 14	PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION	17
ITEM 15	OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS	18
ITEM 16	RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL	18
ITEM 17	RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	19
ITEM 18	PUBLIC FIGURES	22
ITEM 19	FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS	22
ITEM 20	OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION	23
ITEM 21	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	25
ITEM 22	CONTRACTS	25
ITEM 23	RECEIPTS	25

## **EXHIBITS**

## California Appendix

Exhibit A	Financial Statements
Exhibit B	Franchise Agreement
Exhibit C	None
Exhibit D	Agents for Service of Process
Exhibit E	State Administrators
Exhibit F	Sample General Release
Exhibit G	Spousal Consent
Exhibit H	Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Franchisee's Obligations
Exhibit I	Electronic Debit Authorization
Exhibit J	List of Active Franchisees
Exhibit K	List of Former Franchisees
Exhibit L	List of Company-Owned Outlets
Exhibit M	State Effective Dates
Exhibit N	Receipts

# ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, "Afficient Academy" or "We" or "Our" means Afficient Academy of America, Inc., the franchisor. "You" or "Your" means the person who buys the franchise. "Afficient Academy Mark" or "Mark" means the service mark you use in operating the franchise.

#### **Organizational History**

Afficient Academy of America, Inc. is a Delaware corporation formed on November 22, 2016. We do business under our corporate name and variations of that name. Our principal business address is 1054 S. De Anza Blvd., Suite 201, San Jose, California. Our authorized agent for service of process is listed in Exhibit D.

We have two affiliates. Afficient Academy, Inc. ("AAI") has a principal business address of 1054 S. De Anza Blvd., Suite 201, San Jose, California. AAI produces and provides the software that you will use in your Afficient Academy, which is described in more detail in Items 8, 11 and 14.

Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley, Inc. ("AA-SV") has a principal business address of 1054 S. De Anza Blvd., Suite 201, San Jose, California. AA-SV has operated a business similar to the franchises offered in this Disclosure Document since July 2015. It owns and operates all the business counted as company-owned units in Item 20 of this Disclosure Document.

#### **Prior Business Experience**

As a franchise corporation, we have not directly operated an Afficient Academy Learning Center. Since July 2015, our affiliate AA-SV has operated (and continues to operate) a business similar to the type of franchise we offer. AA-SV's business was used as the prototype for developing the franchises we currently offer. See Item 2 below for details on the individuals who operate our AA-SV. Neither Afficient Academy nor AA-SV have ever offered franchises before in this or any other lines of business.

#### **Our Business**

We grant franchises (referred to in this Disclosure Document as an "Afficient Academy Learning Center") for the right to establish and operate a children's Learning Center under our proprietary Afficient Academy Mark. In operating your franchise, you must follow our standards, specifications and operating procedures. We are engaged in no other business. A franchise for the operation of an Afficient Academy Learning Center within a defined territory is granted under the terms of our standard form Franchise Agreement found following Item 23 of this Disclosure Document.

#### **Description of an Afficient Academy Franchise**

An Afficient Academy Learning Center is an academic tutoring and education center for elementary to high school aged children. Students are enrolled into one or more of our learning programs. Afficient Academy software is specifically designed to identify children's skill level and provide step-by-step training, practice and educational support to help children build core academic skills and confidence. The software programs track individual student learning and use sophisticated algorithms to provide learning at a level customized to each child's needs. At Afficient Academy, children receive a combination of both online practice and skills testing and personalized tutoring from our on-site tutors to help them learn at their own pace and focus on their specific needs.

We currently offer English and Math programs and are developing our proprietary programs in additional subject matters.

#### Market, Regulatory & Competitive Factors

The services offered by an Afficient Academy Learning Center appeal to parents who are interested in giving their children a solid academic foundation or additional academic support. It is a particularly appealing option for children who enjoy technology and will be more engaged using a combination of personal attention and computer support to learn.

The market for tutoring is highly developed and competitive. Demand is strong for Learning Centers offering these high levels of academics and education. The market is somewhat seasonal; many parents enroll their children during the school year and enrollment may be lower during the summer.

You will be subject to local, county and state licensing regulations for the operation of businesses in general and this type of business in particular. Certain states may require specific certification with instructional duties. In addition, your Afficient Academy Learning Center may be subject to laws governing persons who work with children, including requirements for background checks.

You should consult with governmental agencies and your lawyer about any special requirements that may apply to you or your Afficient Academy Learning Center. You are responsible for complying with all applicable laws and regulations regardless of any general information or guidance we may provide.

You will compete with other Learning Centers and after-school educational programs.

#### ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

President: Dr. Jiayuan Fang

Since November 2016, Dr. Fang has been President of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. in San Jose, CA. Since August 2014, he has also been President of Afficient Academy, Inc. in San Jose, CA. Prior to this, from July 2012 to June 2014, he worked as Vice President of Research &

Development for Cadence in San Jose, CA, and from July 2002 to June 2012 he was President of Sigrity, Inc. in San Jose, CA.

Director: Weijie Yun

Since November 2016, Mr. Yun has been the Director of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. in San Jose, CA. Since September 2014, Mr. Yun has been a Director of Afficient Academy Inc. in San Jose, CA. From June 2008 to May 2012, Mr. Yun was CEO of Telegent System in Sunnyvale, CA.

Vice President of Operations: Dilip Acharya

Since November 2016, Mr. Acharya has been the Vice President of Operations of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. in San Jose, CA. Since May 2016, Mr. Acharya has been Senior Manager of Business Development and Marketing for Afficient Academy, Inc. in San Jose, CA. Prior to this, Mr. Acharya has worked as a branch manager for Kumon North America in Boston, MA.

#### ITEM 3 LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

# ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcies are required to be disclosed in this Item.

# ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

We charge \$1,000 as an Initial Franchise Fee. This is payable in a lump sum at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement and is non-refundable unless you are unable to open your Learning Center for reasons that we determine are beyond your control.

We also charge \$500 per person for initial training. You are required to have all operators and managers of your Learning Center attend training. Training fees are non-refundable unless you cancel training more than 72 hours before training is scheduled to begin.

#### ITEM 6 OTHER FEES

FEE NAME	AMOUNT	DUE DATE	REMARKS
Royalty	22% of our posted, recommended pricing per student per month per subject <sup>(1)</sup>	By the 10th of each month for the preceding month's enrollment	An enrolled student is any student enrolled as of the last day of the month
Registration Fee <sup>(2)</sup>	\$10 per new student	By the 10 <sup>th</sup> of each month for the preceding month's new enrollments	Payable upon enrollment of a new student. If a student drops out and then re-enrolls more than 1 month later, you must pay this fee again at their re-enrollment
New Manager Training Fee	\$500 per person	At least one week prior to training	Only required if you hire a new manager or bring in a new partner who must receive training
Tutor Training Fee	\$500 per person	At least one week prior to training	Only required if you hire a new tutor
Uniforms	\$30 - \$240	Prior to opening; on demand	You will purchase staff uniforms from us. The least expensive uniform (a short-sleeved shirt) is about \$30. Your total cost will depend on your order.
Incentive Prizes	\$300 - \$500	Prior to opening; on demand	You will pay us for the initial package of incentive prizes, and over time you will buy additional prizes from us on an as-needed basis
Indemnification	Impossible to estimate. Could range from a nominal amount to a cost greater than the total investment.	On demand	Only payable if a third party brings a claim against us and you are responsible under the Franchise Agreement.

FEE NAME	AMOUNT	DUE DATE	REMARKS
Late Payment Charge	Payment due plus 1% per month on the overdue amount	On demand	Payable only if you have failed to pay an amount when due to us. We will charge the lower amount of this or the highest amount permitted by applicable law.  Under California law, the maximum interest rate is 10% annually.
Insufficient Funds Fee	\$25 per insufficient funds incident	On demand	Only required if our bank draw for an amount you owe to us is rejected or your check to us bounces

Note (1): You must pay 22% of our then-current posted monthly course prices. Our posted prices are what our corporate-operated units charge to students. Our current monthly course prices as of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document are:

Afficient Math	\$190
Afficient English	\$190

These prices are posted on our website at www.afficienta.com/how-to-enroll-your-child. We will give you at least 30 days' prior notice in writing before our prices change, and we will not post prices that are higher than what our corporate-operated unit charge. You are not required to charge the same price that we charge, but your royalty will be calculated based on a percentage of our pricing per month per student, even if you charge a different price.

Note (2): From time to time, we may authorize you to offer a promotional discount for new students, during which time we will not collect this registration fee. Except in that instance, we will collect this fee.

#### General Notes:

- This table shows fees that are (or under certain circumstances, may be) payable to us. Unless otherwise stated, all fees are imposed by and are payable to us and none of the fees are refundable. We have changed the royalty fee in this Disclosure Document and the amount you pay may vary from what is paid by certain prior franchisees. Otherwise, the fees imposed are uniform. There will be other fees you need to pay others to operate your business. These are described in Item 7.
- For all fees due to us, we require that you pay by direct or electronic deposit that we initiate through our bank.

# ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

EXPENDITURE	AMOUNT	METHOD OF PAYMENT	WHEN DUE [1]	TO WHOM PAYMENT IS TO BE MADE
Franchise Fee	\$1,000	Lump sum	Date franchise agreement signed	Afficient Academy
Training Fee <sup>(1)</sup>	\$500 - \$1,500	Lump sum	Prior to training	Afficient Academy
Training Program Travel Expenses <sup>(2)</sup>	\$0 - \$3,000	As incurred	As incurred	Travel, food & hospitality suppliers
Leased Real Estate <sup>(3)</sup>	\$2,500 – \$6,000	As incurred	Upon signing lease	Landlord
Construction & Remodeling (4)	\$10,000 - \$50,000	As incurred	Before opening	Contractors
Equipment <sup>(5)</sup>	\$10,000 - \$25,000	Lump sum	Before opening	Suppliers
Fixtures	\$0 - \$5,000	As incurred	Before opening	Suppliers
Signage <sup>(6)</sup>	\$3,000 - \$5,000	Lump sum	As incurred	Suppliers; landlord
Uniforms & Incentives <sup>(7)</sup>	\$330 - \$540	As incurred	Before opening	Afficient Academy
Initial Advertising <sup>(8)</sup>	\$2,000 - \$5,000	As incurred	As incurred	Vendors
Liability Insurance	\$300 - \$500	Lump sum	As incurred	Vendors
Accounting & Legal Expenses	\$2,000 - \$4,000	As incurred	As incurred	Accountant, Attorney
Security & utility deposits, business licenses & other prepaid expenses	\$5,000 - \$15,000	As incurred	As incurred	Vendors & governmental entities

EXPENDITURE	AMOUNT	METHOD OF PAYMENT	WHEN DUE [1]	TO WHOM PAYMENT IS TO BE MADE
Additional Funds <sup>(9)</sup>	\$10,000 - \$20,000	As incurred	As incurred	Various
TOTAL	\$46,630 - \$141,540			

You must directly pay (or provide independent financing for) all initial investment expenditures listed in this Item 7 to begin operations of your Afficient Academy Learning Center. We do not offer any financing (see Item 10). Except the circumstance where the franchise fee is refundable (see Item 5 of this Disclosure Document), none of the other investment expenditures are refundable unless you make independent arrangements with sellers or suppliers about whether, and under what conditions, payments may be refundable. Some costs and expenses will vary due to a disparity of prices, availability, and other factors. The cost of each item can and should be independently checked by you within your local area. The figures provided in this table are estimates based on our affiliate's experience starting the current locations operated by AA-SV.

The training fee cost depends on how many people need to be trained. We anticipate that in most instances it will be 1-3 people.

Your travel costs depend on how far away you are from our current training location, San Jose, California. If you are local, you will not incur travel costs, but if you do not live near our training facility, you will incur costs to fly or drive to San Jose, California, stay in a hotel or motel, and eat meals in this area. Training lasts for two weeks.

This estimate is based on a leased commercial space of approximately 1,000 - 1,200 square feet, situated in a commercial or retail zoned area in a strip mall or shopping plaza with available parking and visibility from the street.

Our estimate for construction build-out costs anticipates a finished commercial space of the size described in Note 3, above, in which you need to furnish a finished space with new carpet, new paint, add walls to construct a small private office and potentially upgrade lighting fixtures or the finishes in the restroom. If you lease a significantly larger space or a space that is unfinished or needs more significant construction, your costs will be higher.

Equipment includes computers, computer networking equipment, and furniture including tables, chairs, desks and cabinets.

We require you to install prominent and visible signage within one month of opening the business, preferably illuminated signage.

We require you to purchase a starter pack of incentive prizes to give away to children as they progress through subject matter, as well as uniforms for everyone who works at your Afficient

Academy Learning Center. This estimate covers the starter pack of incentives and a range of uniforms.

We require you to spend a minimum of \$2,000 on initial advertising. You may spend this money on flyer distribution, internet marketing or grand opening advertising at your Afficient Academy Learning Center.

This estimates your initial startup expenses for the first 3 months of operations based on our Affiliate's experience, adjusted for current pricing levels, in operating a similar business as discussed in Item 1 under "Prior Business Experience." This is only an estimate, and we cannot guarantee you will not have additional expenses, such as personal expenses, that exceed our estimates. Revenues and costs can vary due to many factors. The estimate assumes you will hire and pay two part-time tutors and does not include your salary. You should review all initial investment figures carefully with a competent financial business advisor.

# ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

#### **Required Purchases**

We require you to purchase certain goods that we designate.

- You are required to use the Afficient software described in Item 11.
- You are required to purchase from us and provide to students in your Learning Center the incentive prizes that we designate, following our system which designates a point system and the appropriate prizes available at each point level.
- We require that you purchase from us the uniforms we designate.

We also impose the general requirement that you follow our business system in precise detail. Apart from these requirements, we currently have no required specifications, designated suppliers or approved suppliers for goods, services or real estate relating to your franchise business.

#### **Required and Approved Suppliers**

Our Affiliate is a required supplier of the Afficient software. Our Affiliate is currently working on expanding the subject matters supported by our software and in the future you will be required to offer new subject matters. At this time, it is impossible to estimate the details or revenues that may be derived from future system improvements. You will not pay our Affiliate directly for use of the software. We provide the Afficient software to you at no cost other than the fees you pay to us disclosed in Item 6.

#### **Approval of Alternate Suppliers**

We have authority to determine the vendors for the products we require you to purchase. You may suggest a new vendor by providing us with a written request. If we are willing to consider

an alternate vendor for the item you suggest, we have the right to require you to purchase at your own expense a sample sufficient for us to review the quality. We will let you know in writing within sixty (60) days if we approve the new vendor. We also have the right to require you to provide us with additional information about the vendor.

Our specifications and requirements are contained in our confidential Manuals, which are provided to you and may be updated occasionally. Future supplements, improvements or changes to our business system may require you to add or eliminate previously authorized Learning Center services or products used in your business.

#### Revenue from Franchisee Purchases

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, we have not earned any revenue from the sale of any goods to franchisees. We do sell uniforms to franchisees at cost, but did not sell any in 2022.

The cost of equipment and supplies purchased in accordance with our specifications will represent approximately 80% of your total purchases in establishing your business, and 30% of your total purchases during the ongoing operation of your business.

#### **Cooperatives**

We do not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives.

#### **Negotiated Prices**

We have not yet negotiated any purchase arrangements, except for a negotiated license with our Affiliate that permits us to license the Afficient software to you at no cost other than the royalty and registration fees we require you to pay.

We may in the future negotiate purchase arrangements with other vendors.

#### **Material Benefits**

We do not provide any material benefits to you if you buy from sources we approve.

#### ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items in this disclosure document.

	OBLIGATION	SECTION(S) OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ("FA")	ITEM(S) IN DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
a.	Site selection & acquisition/lease	FA - Section 3.03	7, 11
b.	Pre-opening purchases or leases	FA - Section 3.01, 3.03	7, 8
c.	Site development & other pre-opening requirements	FA – Sections 3.03	7, 11
d.	Initial & ongoing training	FA - Sections 3.06, 4.01, 4.02	6, 7, 11, 15
e.	Opening	FA - Sections 3.03, 3.04, 3.06	11
f.	Fees	FA - Sections 2.01, 3.01, 3.02, 3.04, 3.05, 3.06, 3.08, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15, 4.01, 4.02, 5.01, 5.02, 5.04, 6.01, 6.02	5, 6, 7, 8, 11, 17
g.	Compliance with standards and policies/operating manual	FA - Section 1.02, 1.03, 2.01, 3.04, 3.06, 3.07, 3.08, 3.09, 3.11, 3.13, 3.15, 3.16, 4.01, 4.02, 4.03, 5.02, 5.04, 6.01, 6.02, 6.04, 7.02	1, 6, 8, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17
h.	Trademark and proprietary information	FA - Sections 1.02, 1.03, 2.01, 2.02, 3.04, 3.06, 3.07, 3.08, 3.09, 4.02, 4.03, 5.02, 5.04, 7.01, 7.07	1, 6, 8, 13, 14, 17
i.	Restrictions on products or services offered	FA - Sections 1.03, 2.02, 3.08, 3.09, 3.16, 5.02	6, 8, 16
j.	Warranty and customer service requirements	None	None
k.	Territorial development and sales quotas	FA - Sections 3.06	1, 5, 11, 12, 17
1.	Ongoing product or service purchases	FA – Sections 2.01, 3.06, 4.02	6, 8
m.	Maintenance, appearance and remodeling requirements	FA - Sections 1.03, 2.01, 3.06	1, 6, 7, 8, 17

	OBLIGATION	SECTION(S) OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT ("FA")	ITEM(S) IN DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
n.	Insurance	FA - Sections 3.13	6, 7
0.	Advertising	FA - Sections 3.04, 5.04	6, 7, 17
p.	Indemnification	FA - Sections 3.12	6
q.	Owner's participation/ management/staffing	FA - Sections 3.06, 6.01, 6.02, 6.04	6, 11, 15, 17
r.	Records/reports	FA - Sections 1.03, 3.13, 3.15, 5.02, 5.04, 6.01, 6.03, 6.04	6, 7, 8, 9, 17
s.	Inspections/audits	FA - Sections 3.15, 3.16	6, 8
t.	Transfer	FA - Sections 6.01 - 6.06, 7.07	6, 17
u.	Renewal	FA - Sections 2.03	17
v.	Post termination obligations	FA - Sections 5.01, 5.04	17
w.	Noncompetition covenants	FA - Sections 3.06, 5.04	17
х.	Dispute resolution	FA - Sections 5.04, 7.05, 7.07, 7.08, 7.09	17
y.	System improvements	FA - Sections 3.08	6, 16

#### ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer, direct or indirect financing arrangements. We do not guarantee notes, leases or any other obligations you may incur.

We do not receive any payments for placing or referring Franchisees to lending sources for financing.

#### ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

#### **Preopening Assistance and Services**

Before you open your business, we will provide the following assistance:

- 1. <u>Designated Territory</u>. Grant and define your designated territory. See Item 12 below for discussion. (Franchise Agreement ("FA") Section 2.01(b) and Exhibit 1).
- 2. <u>Site Advice and Approval</u>. Provide information about site characteristics, proximity factors, lease provisions and a list of recommended realtors. (FA Sections 3.03 and 4.01(d).) If you need an introduction to a real estate agent with experience in this type of business, we will introduce you to one or help you locate one if we do not already know one in your area. We will visit sites you have identified and provide advice regarding the suitability of your options. We have the right of final approval over any site you select, and you cannot sign a lease without our approval. The franchise is granted for a single, specific location. (FA Section 2.01.) Unless we agree otherwise, you must open for business within one hundred eighty days of the date you sign the Franchise Agreement. (FA Section 3.03.)
- 3. <u>Lease</u>. Review your lease and provide guidance. We recommend that every franchisee hire a lawyer to review their lease agreements. We do not offer legal advice, but we will review the lease to the best of our ability and point out issues that we are aware may help or harm your interests based on our management's experience. This review does not replace a lawyer's review.
- 4. Training Program. Train you and any other manager at our corporate headquarters located in San Jose, California. Training lasts up to ten (10) days. (FA Section 4.10(a).) The goal of the training program is to familiarize you with all facets of operating the business. Training is mandatory for all owners and managers, and you must satisfactorily complete all segments of training before starting business operations. Determination of whether you satisfactorily complete training rests solely with us (FA Section 4.01(a)). The training program is given so you complete it about thirty days before the intended opening of your business. Your travel and living expenses while attending the training program are your responsibility. Attendance at additional training programs given through Franchisee Conventions (discussed below) or if a new person assumes management of your franchise (discussed below) is also required. In training you, we use the services and draw upon the expertise of our operating personnel who have primary responsibility and experience for training in the areas of marketing, administrative, technical and other management functions. Instructional materials include a course curriculum and excerpts from our confidential Start-Up Guide, Operations Manual and Policy Manual. Training covers the topics listed in the table below and includes an exercise to create a business plan and enrollment goals, and to teach you how to maintain and update your business plan.
- 5. <u>Marketing Support</u>. Provide you with marketing ideas and our marketing guidelines. We announce your Grand Opening on the Afficient Academy main website, and we create a site specific page on our Afficient Academy website for your franchise. We will also designate the name of your Learning Center.

- 6. <u>Grand Opening Support.</u> Assist you with planning and attend your Grand Opening.
- 7. Confidential Operating Manuals. Loan to you one complete copy each of our confidential Start-Up Guide, Operations Manual and Policy Manual containing, among other things, specifications, instructions and requirements about authorized services, suppliers, standards and operating procedures. These manuals always remain our property and we may change any manual occasionally to reflect changes in our business system. You must treat the manuals and all information in them as confidential. You must keep all manuals current and follow new or changed provisions. The master copy of each manual maintained at our principal office is controlling in the event of a dispute about the contents of any manual. (FA Section 3.06(a)(iv).) We will permit you to view a copy of the Operations Manual prior to signing the Franchise Agreement.
- 8. <u>Initial Forms</u>. Provide you with copies of enrollment and other operating forms as detailed in our manuals.

# Assistance, Support and Services During Operations ("Section" refers to section(s) of the Franchise Agreement)

After your business begins operations, we will provide:

- 1. Start Up Assistance. Assist you remotely for a period of up to two weeks at your franchise to aid in learning operations and to assist in establishing standard operating procedures. (FA Section 4.02(a).)
- 2. Consultation. Provide continuing support by having representatives at our corporate office available to answer questions arising in the day-to-day operation of your business. (FA Section 4.02(a).)
- 3. Proprietary Software. Provide you with a license to use and base your tutoring programs on our proprietary Afficient Math and Afficient English Language Arts software programs, together with any future software programs we offer under the Afficient brand.
- 4. Franchisee Conventions. We may, but are not required to, sponsor annual seminars for updates on new management techniques, industry trends and other topics of interest. We have the right to charge for these seminars. If we do, we have the right to charge you to attend. It is your responsibility to pay all travel, living and other expenses incurred by you in attending these seminars, as well as your share of renting any conference room, etc. Attendance at seminars is encouraged but not mandatory. (FA Section 4.02(b).)
- 5. Manager Training. Provide training (in accordance with our then-current Manager Training Fee Schedule) if a new person becomes an approved manager of your franchise. (FA Section 4.01(a).)
- 6. Consulting. If you request, we will provide additional support or on-site consulting services in accordance with our then-current consulting fee schedule. (FA Sections 4.02(a) and (f).)

7. Protection of Mark. Take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect the ownership and validity of our service mark, and to permit other franchisees to use the mark only in accordance with our standards and specifications. (FA Section 4.03.)

#### **Computer System**

Your Afficient Academy Learning Center must have enough computers for all students present at the same time at your Learning Center to use a computer and run an Afficient software module. We require you to use desktop computers with monitors no smaller than 20". We strongly encourage you to purchase identical computers for a uniform look, and have the right to prohibit you from using a combination of different sized computer monitors that present an unappealing appearance. All computers will need to have the capability to use an internet browser to access our software.

We require you to start with a minimum of 10 computers. We estimate that your computer cost will be in the range of \$8,000 - \$12,000.

We have the right to inspect your books, records, data and financial statements, and this right includes access to the software programs used to compile this information. (FA Section 3.15(b).)

#### **Updating Requirements**

In general, you will update or upgrade the various programs used on your computer, just as any computer user does. There is no contractual limit on the frequency or cost of this updating process, but because the only software components we require you to use are our software, which we provide to you at the costs listed in Item 6 and an internet browser which typically provides updates at no cost, we estimate that there should be no annual cost for you to maintain current software, unless you elect to use third party software we do not require.

We anticipate that you will need to replace the computers in your Learning Center approximately once every five years. The cost to do this is listed above.

We might also ask you to implement other software or hardware related to system improvements to better manage children's progress and staff records. If we do, you may be required to pay a monthly or annual fee for the software or hardware we will require.

#### **Estimated Opening Time**

We estimate the typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement and the opening of your franchise to be three to six months. Factors affecting this time include time to schedule, attend and successfully complete our training program, finding an appropriate site, lease negotiations, time to comply with various permit and licensing requirements, time for delivery and installation of equipment and furniture items as well as interviewing and hiring tutors. Unless we agree otherwise, you must commence business operations within 180 days of the date you sign the Franchise Agreement. We require you to put up permanent electrical signage within 1 month of opening the business. (FA Section 3.03(a).)

#### TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject	Hours of Classroom Training	Hours of Training On-the-Job	Location <sup>(1)</sup>
Learning Center Operations	6	18	San Jose, CA
Afficient Math	4	24	San Jose, CA
Afficient English	4	24	San Jose, CA
TOTAL	14	66	

Our current training program which takes place at our headquarters in San Jose, California, takes approximately two weeks to complete. These estimated hours cover the dynamics of operating an Afficient Academy Learning Center and includes the subjects described. Training will be provided by trainers with at least six months experience with our company and a Bachelor's degree or equivalent in their field.

The training program for new franchisees is scheduled throughout the year on an as-needed basis.

During your training program you will have access to elements of our curriculum which are considered intellectual property and you must agree not to distribute, share, publish or use this information outside of your franchise.

#### ITEM 12 TERRITORY

You are given an area, usually defined by street boundaries, highways, counties, political subdivisions or other means on a map. This mapped area is called your "Designated Territory" or "Territory" in the franchise agreement. It is specified and attached as Exhibit 1 before you sign the franchise agreement. Once the signing takes place, you are responsible for determining and selecting the exact location of your franchise within this area.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Our affiliate AAI offers a service called Remote Monitoring which allows students who do not have a Learning Center in their community to complete Afficient Academy programs. If there are Remote Monitoring students in the Territory you acquire, AAI will strongly encourage these students to enroll with your Learning Center, but we do not require them to do so. After you open your Learning Center, we will encourage students in your Territory to enroll with your Learning Center, but we will permit them to enroll in Remote Monitoring if they are unable to go to your location or if they move out of your Territory but want to stay enrolled at your Learning

Center. We will permit you to offer Remote Monitoring services to students within your Territory, provided that you meet our requirements, which include having available tutors for the subject areas in which you will offer these services.

All franchisees are free to enroll students regardless of where those children live or attend school. There may be children who reside in your Territory who attend an Afficient Academy Learning Center outside of your Territory. You are not permitted to offer Remote Monitoring to any students outside of your Territory.

#### Right of First Refusal to Open Additional Franchises

Where we can demonstrate that your Territory will support the opening of another Afficient Academy Learning Center without significantly harming the attendance at your existing Learning Center(s), we may offer the right to open another Afficient Academy Learning Center within the Territory described in your franchise agreement.

Before we will offer the opportunity to open a new Afficient Academy Learning Center within the Territory described in your franchise agreement, we will first offer it to you in writing. You will have 60 days in which to decide whether you will open another Learning Center within the Territory. If you elect to open the additional Afficient Academy Learning Center, you must pay the then-current Initial Franchise Fee, promptly sign the then-current form of franchise agreement, and open the new Learning Center within the time frame required under our then-current system terms.

If you decline to open the additional Learning Center within the Territory or fail to respond to us within 60 days of our notice of intent to open an additional Learning Center, we may operate, or grant another franchisee the right to operate, an Afficient Academy Learning Center franchise in the Territory described in your franchise agreement.

If we grant the right to open another Learning Center within the Territory described in your franchise agreement to a third party and subsequently determine that the Territory can support a third or more Learning Center, the right to operate such Learning Center will first be offered to owner who is geographically closest to the area in which we determine an additional Learning Center can be established.

#### ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we grant you a license to use the service mark "AFFICIENT ACADEMY," (referred to in this Item as the "Mark"). Your continuing ability to use the Mark depends on following all applicable standards, specifications and operating procedures as set forth in our Franchise Agreement and our confidential Operations Manual and Policy Manual.

We have one federally registered trademark with the United States Patent & Trademark Office, shown in the chart below. All maintenance filings have been made for this registered trademark.

Mark	Registration Number	Date Registered
AFFICIENT ACADEMY	5,269,925	August 22, 2017

Our right to license others to use the above Mark comes from an exclusive license agreement between our Affiliate, Afficient Academy, Inc., and us. This agreement has a term of 10 years and, unless canceled or modified, may be renewed by us for additional terms of 10 years each. The agreement can be modified only if both parties agree in writing. The agreement can be canceled only if we engage in or permit acts that reflect unfavorably on the reputation and goodwill of the Mark. Even if the license agreement were canceled, this would not adversely affect any rights you have to use the Mark under your franchise agreement.

You must notify us if you discover any unauthorized use of the Mark (or a colorable imitation of them), or if litigation involving the Mark is started or threatened. Although the franchise agreement requires us to take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect the ownership and validity of the Mark, we are not specifically obligated to protect any rights you have to use the Mark or to protect or indemnify you against claims of infringement or unfair competition. We have the right to control any litigation or administrative proceeding involving the Mark. You have no specific rights under the Franchise Agreement if we require you to modify or discontinue use of the Mark as a result of a proceeding or settlement.

# ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

#### **Patents**

U.S. Patent No. 9818306 was issued to Afficient Academy, Inc. on November 14, 2017. It covers a methodology used in the software that you will be licensed to use in your Afficient Academy Learning Center.

Our right to use or license this patent is not materially limited by any agreement or known infringing use.

You must tell us immediately if you learn about an infringement or challenge to our use of this patent. We will take action that we think is appropriate. You must also agree not to contest our interest in these.

If we decide to add, modify, or discontinue the use of an item or process covered by a patent, you must also do so. Our sole obligation is to reimburse you for the tangible cost of complying with this obligation.

Although we are not obligated to defend your use of these items or processes, we will reimburse you for damages and reasonable costs incurred in litigation about them.

#### **Copyrights**

We have not registered any copyrights material to the franchise with the U.S. Copyright Office as of the effective date of this disclosure. We do claim copyright protection and trade secret protection (discussed below) for our confidential Operations Manual and Policy Manual, as well as Start-Up Guide and curriculum and intellectual property.

#### **Proprietary Trade Secrets**

The franchise agreement describes, and our Operations Manuals contain, proprietary and trade secret know-how developed by us and licensed to you. In addition, our software code and portions of the software that are not visible to children or parents who participate in Afficient Academy tutoring is proprietary to us. This proprietary information is referred to below as our "System." Under the terms of the franchise agreement: (i) you do not acquire any interest in our System, other than the right to use it in the operation of your franchise during the term of your agreement; (ii) you agree not to use our System in any business or capacity other than the development and operation of your franchise; (iii) you agree to treat the software and the Operations Manuals, including updates, in confidence as trade secrets; (iv) you agree not to make any unauthorized copies of any software or Manual or any other confidential information supplied by us and (v) you agree to take specific steps to maintain the confidentiality of our System during and after the term of your franchise. We are not aware of any infringing uses that would materially affect your use of our proprietary materials.

# ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

We do not require you to personally participate (on a full time basis) in the direct operation of the franchise business, however we strongly recommend that you do so. If you do not personally manage the operation of your Afficient Academy, you must hire a full-time manager to oversee operations.

Any manager(s) hired by you must first be approved by us and trained. We will only approve managers who have business experience and enough technical knowledge to be able to operate and trouble-shoot various computer issues. We will provide you with a specific list of skills that your manager must have. They must also successfully complete our training program - see Item 6 above under "New Manager Training." We also require that any manager employed by you enter into a written confidentiality agreement. See Item 14 above. We do not require that your manager(s) have an ownership interest in your franchise.

# ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must (1) offer and sell only those Learning Center programs and curriculums that we have approved for sale in writing; (2) offer and sell all types of Learning Center programs and curriculums we specify; (3) refrain from any deviation from our standards and specifications without our prior written consent; and (4) discontinue offering and selling any Learning Center programs and curriculums which we may, in our discretion, disapprove in writing at any time.

There are no contractual limits on our right to make changes or improvements to services (or products) offered as part of our system. All Learning Center programs and curriculums must meet our then-current standards and specifications, as specified in our Manuals or otherwise in writing. See also Items 8 and 9.

# ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

#### THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

	PROVISION	AGREEMENT SECTION	SUMMARY
a.	Term of Franchise	2.03(a)	5 years from date of signing
b.	Renewal or extension of term	2.03(b)	One additional 5 year renewal option
c.	Requirements for you to renew or extend	2.03(b)	You must be in good standing under the Franchise Agreement and not have had more than 3 defaults during the immediately prior 12 month period and give us written notice of your intent to renew 180 days prior to the end of your term
d.	Termination by you	5.01	Only if we default and do not remedy within 30 days of written notice. If you leave the system early, you must pay us 6 months' royalty and registration fees as liquidated damages.
e.	Termination by us without cause	None	We can only terminate you for cause
f.	Termination by us with cause	5.02	Subject to "g" and "h" only if you default and do not remedy the default
g.	"Cause" defined- curable defaults	5.02; 5.03	Subject to "h" below, you have 30 days to cure all defaults after notice from us, unless you have defaulted on 2 other occasions within a 6 month period

	PROVISION	AGREEMENT SECTION	SUMMARY
h.	"Cause" defined- defaults which cannot be cured	5.02	Abandonment, insolvency, unsatisfied judgments, levy, foreclosure, criminal behavior, mark abuse, unauthorized disclosure, misrepresentation, intentional fraud, etc.
i.	Your obligations on termination or nonrenewal	5.04	You must stop using our System, software and Mark; pay creditors; return our Manuals; assign your lease; offer us asset purchase rights; transfer phone numbers and all social media accounts to us; transfer customer information; follow non-disclosure, competition & good-will covenants (see also "r" below); stop using our Website; and (if applicable under "d" above) pay us additional amounts owed
j.	Assignment of contract by us	6.06	No restrictions on our right to assign
k.	"Transfer" by you - defined	6.01-6.05	Includes transfers of franchise agreement, assets, ownership changes, death and permanent disability
1.	Our approval of transfer by you	6.01	Our written consent is required, will not be unreasonably withheld as long as certain conditions are satisfied (see "m.")
m.	Conditions for our approval of transfer	6.01	We are given a right of 1st refusal (see "n." below), new person/entity meets our standards, you are in good standing, the transfer fee is paid, new persons signs our then-current form of franchise agreement and successfully completes our training program, release signed by you, and we approve the terms of your sale
n.	Our right of first refusal to acquire your franchise	6.03	We have 30 days to match any offer for your business; for transfers of more than 50%, we have a right of first refusal to buy 100% of the interest

	PROVISION	AGREEMENT SECTION	SUMMARY
0.	Franchisor's option to purchase your business	5.04	In most cases involving termination of your agreement, we have a 30 day option to assume your real estate lease, buy the physical assets, inventory, etc.
p.	Your death or disability	6.02	You or your estate must put a new operator in place and have that person complete training within 120 days, or must transfer the business to a new owner with our approval (see "l" above). We have the right to manage your business during the interim period if the business is not run properly
q.	Non-competition covenants during term of franchise	3.06(d)	Neither you nor your spouse can have involvement in any competitive business
r.	Noncompetition covenants after franchise is terminated or expires	5.04(h)(ii)	Except as prohibited by law, neither you nor your spouse can have involvement in any competitive business for 12 months within 50 miles of the Territory (same restrictions apply after transfer)
S.	Modification of Agreement	7.02	Must be in writing signed by both parties. Changes to operations/ policy manuals do not change status/rights under the franchise agreement
t.	Integration/merger	7.02	Only the terms of the franchise agreement are binding (subject to state law). Any promises outside the disclosure document and franchise agreement may not be enforceable.
u.	Dispute resolution by arbitration/mediation	7.07	Subject to our remedies at law and in equity, all disputes are settled by binding arbitration in our home state in a court of competent jurisdiction or by arbitration
V.	Choice of forum	7.07	Litigation generally must be in our home jurisdiction, currently in San Jose, CA

	PROVISION	AGREEMENT SECTION	SUMMARY
w.	Choice of law	7.07	The law of our home state (currently California) applies, except for service mark issues where federal law may apply
х.	Limitation of claims	7.08	Claims must be brought within one (1) year
y.	Waiver of punitive damages	7.09	Both we and you waive right to collect punitive damages

#### ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.

#### ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances

We do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting our Vice President of Operations at 1054 S. De Anza Blvd, Suite 201, San Jose, CA 95129 and (408) 642-1012, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

#### ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

#### Table No. 1 System Wide Outlet Summary For Years of 2020 to 2022

Outlet Type	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets at End of Year	Net Change
Franchised	2020	7	8	+1
	2021	8	8	0
	2022	8	8	0
Company-Owned	2020	6	6	0
	2021	6	4	(-2)
	2022	4	1	(-3)
Total Outlets	2020	13	14	+1
	2021	14	12	(-2)
	2022	12	9	(-3)

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)
For the Fiscal Years of 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Number of Transfers
CA	2019	0
	2020	0
	2021	0
NC	2019	0
	2020	0
	2021	0
Total	2020	0
	2021	0
	2022	0

Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For the Fiscal Years of 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Outlets at Start of the Year	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations For Other Reasons	Outlets at End of Year
CA	2020	6	1	0	0	0	0	7
	2021	7	0	0	0	0	0	7
	2022	7	0	0	0	0	0	7
NC	2020	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Totals	2020	7	1	0	0	0	0	8
	2021	8	0	0	0	0	0	8
	2022	8	0	0	0	0	0	8

A list of all active franchised outlets as of December 31, 2022, is attached to the Disclosure Document as Exhibit J. A list of all franchisees who have left the system as of December 31, 2022 is attached as Exhibit K. A list of all company-owned outlets as of December 31 2022 is attached as Exhibit L.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with Afficient Academy. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

Table No. 4 Status of Company-Owned Outlets For Years 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Outlets Reacquired from Franchisees	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisees	Outlets at End of Year
CA	2020	6	0	0	0	0	6
	2021	6	0	0	2	0	4
	2022	4	0	0	3	0	1
Totals	2020	6	0	0	0	0	6
	2021	6	0	0	2	0	4
	2022	4	0	0	3	0	1

We do not directly own any outlets. However, our Affiliate owns and operates multiple Afficient Academy Learning Center which are listed in this table.

Table No. 5
Projected New Franchised Outlets As of December 31, 2022

State	Franchise Agreements Signed But Outlet Not Opened As Of December 31, 2022	Projected New Franchised Outlets In The Next Fiscal Year (2023)	Projected Company- Owned Outlets In The Next Fiscal Year (2023)
CA	0	0	0
Total	0	0	0

#### ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A is our audited financial statement for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.

Our fiscal year end is December 31.

#### ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B is one copy of the Franchise Agreement.

#### ITEM 23 RECEIPTS

Two copies of an acknowledgment of your receipt of this Disclosure Document appear as Exhibit N. Please sign and date one copy and return it to us. Retain the other copy for your records.

# CALIFORNIA APPENDIX TO AFFICIENT ACADEMY OF AMERICA, INC. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 20000 THROUGH 20043 PROVIDE RIGHTS TO THE FRANCHISEE CONCERNING TERMINATION OR NONRENEWAL OF A FRANCHISE. IF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE LAW, THE LAW WILL CONTROL.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PROVIDES FOR TERMINATION UPON BANKRUPTCY. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY LAW (11 USCA SEC 101ET SEQ).

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS PROVISIONS THAT MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, A COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE THAT EXTENDS BEYOND THE TERMINATION OF THE FRANCHISE, A LIMITATION OF ACTIONS PERIOD, AND A WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES.

A SPOUSE WHO IS NOT A PARTY TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT WILL BE REQUIRED TO SIGN A PERSONAL GUARANTY, AGREEING TO BE JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR ALL THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE, WHETHER OR NOT THE SPOUSE IS INVOLVED IN THE OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS. THIS PLACES THE PERSONAL ASSETS OF THE OWNER AND THE OWNER'S SPOUSE AT RISK.

YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE SECTION 31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (California Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code Section 30010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (Business and Professions Code Sections 2000 through 20043).

NEITHER THE FRANCHISOR NOR ANY PERSON DESCRIBED IN ITEM 2 OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO ANY CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE ORDER OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE AS DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, 15 USCA 78a ET SEQ, SUSPENDING OR EXPELLING SUCH PERSONS FROM MEMBERSHIP IN SUCH ASSOCIATION OR EXCHANGE.

THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSE. UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1671, CERTAIN LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSES ARE UNENFORCEABLE.

OUR URL IS www.afficienta.com. OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND

INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT https://dfpi.ca.gov.

## **EXHIBIT A**

## FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

## **AFFICIENT ACADEMY OF AMERICA INC.**

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2022

\* \* \*

## **AFFICIENT ACADEMY OF AMERICA INC.**

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## DECEMBER 31, 2022

	Page No.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1-2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
Balance Sheet	3 - 4
Statement of Comprehensive Income (loss)	5
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	8 - 12

## C. G. UHLENBERG LLP



#### CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT**

To the Shareholders of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. San Jose, California

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Afficient Academy of America, Inc., which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholder's equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Afficient Academy of America, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

#### **Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements**

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Afficient Academy of America, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Afficient Academy of America, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control—related matters that we identified during the audit.

C. G. Whlenberg UP

February 17, 2023

Fremont, California

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2022

<u>ASSETS</u>		
Current Assets:		

TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 876,978
Total Current Assets	 876,978
Related party receivable	 821,148
Account receivable	12,212
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 43,618
Zurrent Assets.	

(Continued)

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2022

### **LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY**

Current Liabilities:	
Related party payable	\$ 333,519
Total Current Liabilities	333,519
Other Liabilities:	
Deferred franchise fee	2,170
Deferred training fee	965
Total Other Liabilities	 3,135
Total Liabilities	 336,654
Shareholder's Equity	
Common stock, par value \$0.001, 1,000 shares authorized;	
1,000 shares issued and outstanding	1
Additional paid-in capital	29,999
Retained Earnings	 510,324
Total Shareholder's Equity	 540,324
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY	\$ 876,978

(Concluded)

# STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Revenues:	
Franchise fee	\$ 294,375
Training fee	 700
Total Revenue-Net	295,075
Operating Expenses	
Consulting fee- related party	80,000
Legal & professional fees	21,322
Software license	2,260
Business license and tax	 225
Total Operating Expenses	 103,807
Net Income from Operations	 191,268
Income before Provision for Income Taxes	191,268
Provision for Income Taxes	 800
Net Income	190,468
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax	 
Total Comprehensive Income	\$ 190,468

## STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

	No. of Shares	 k nount	ditional -in Captial	Retained Earnings	Total
Balance as of December 31, 2021	1,000	\$ 1	\$ 29,999	\$ 319,856	\$ 349,856
Net Income			 -	 190,468	 190,468
Balance as of December 31, 2022	1,000	\$ 1	\$ 29,999	\$ 510,324	\$ 540,324

## STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:	<b>•</b>	100.100
Net Income	\$	190,468
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash		
provided by operating activities:		
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Decrease in account receivable		2,428
Increase in accounts receivable - related party		(295,202)
Decrease in other liabilities		(2,300)
Increase in accounts payable - related party		104,606
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents		
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		43,618
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$	43,618
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:		
Cash paid during the year for:		
Interest	\$	
Income taxes	\$	800

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### General

Afficient Academy of America, Inc. (the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of Afficient Academy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Parent), was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on November 22, 2016. The Company was also qualified to transact business in the State of California commencing on December 2, 2016. The Company operates as a franchisor which grants franchisees the right to establish and operate children's learning centers under their proprietary "Afficient Academy" trade mark and business model. The Company relies on its Parent company for financial support until it develops wider franchisee base.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

The Company uses the accrual method of accounting for financial statements and income tax purposes. Revenue is recognized when earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable.

#### Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from franchise fees, teacher training fees and royalty fees. Initial franchise fee and training fees; are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. Royalties are based on performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with original maturities of three months or shorter at investment date are considered to be cash equivalents.

#### Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Following current accounting literature for other comprehensive income (loss), elements of other comprehensive income is reported net of tax or gross of tax with aggregate tax effect disclosed separately. Our elements of other comprehensive income primarily consist of currency translation adjustments. The Company has no other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022.

#### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

#### Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry and, accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. Risks include competition from companies with greater resources and well-established franchising approach. Development of sales channels and networks in a rapidly changing environment also indicate uncertainties in the business operation.

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

The Company has adopted in 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2014-09 – (ASC 606) Revenue from Contracts with Customers, a new standard that replaces most revenue recognition guidance under current U.S. GAAP. This update requires the Company to reevaluate when revenue is recorded on a transaction. This update also requires additional disclosures about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements and estimates.

Under the previous standards, initial franchise fees and training fees were recognized as revenue when the related franchisees signed a facility lease and completed the Company's new franchisee training. Royalties are calculated at the numbers of enrolled students monthly and recognized in a lag over the agreement. By the adoption of ASC 606, initial franchise fee and training fees, are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. Royalties are entirely based on performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur. The Company's Financial Statements reflect the application of ASC 606 guidance beginning in 2021. As the Company evolves, management continues to evaluate the adoption method and the potential impact that the implementation of ASC 606 will have on the financial statements, specifically related to revenue disclosures which are expected to expand and may require judgement in certain areas.

The Company has adopted in 2022, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02 – Leases (Topic 842), revising accounting for operating leases for lessees. This update requires a lessee to recognize a liability to make lease payment and an asset representing its right to use the asset for the lease term on the balance sheet. Additionally, this update requires both qualitative and specific quantitative disclosures. There is no significant impact to the Company's cash flow statement by the adoption of ASU 2016-02.

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

The Company has adopted in 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-15 – Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. This amendment addresses cash flow statement classification of activity related to debt and certain other activities. There is no significant impact to the Company's cash flow statement by the adoption of ASU-2016-15.

#### 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash balance as of December 31, 2022, consisted of the following:

Checking	\$ 43,618
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 43,618

The Company maintains its cash balances at East West Bank. The Company's bank balances are insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount up to \$250,000 per bank. As of December 31, 2022, the bank balance was fully covered by FDIC insurance.

#### 2. <u>ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE</u>

The Company utilizes the reserve method to account for its bad debt expenses. Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2022:

Accounts receivable Allowance for doubtful accounts	\$ 12,212
Total Accounts Receivable	\$ 12,212

There was no bad debt expense for the year ended December 31, 2022.

#### 3. <u>RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS</u>

As of December 31, 2022, the Company's receivable from its affiliated company-Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley, Inc. in the amount of \$821,148, was made up of the franchise fee, training fees and royalty fees from franchisees that were collected by Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley on behalf of the Company.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company's payable to its parent company in the amount of \$333,519, was made up of \$51,446 in software license fee charged by the Parent and the Company's operating expenses in the amount of \$282,073 advanced by the Parent.

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

#### 4 **INCOME TAXES**

The Company accounts for its income taxes under the asset and liability approach whereby the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities are recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities. Effective federal and state income tax rates have been applied in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2022, are as follows:

Non-current:	
State taxes	\$ 168
Organizational cost	816
Deferred revenue	877
Valuation allowance	(1,861)
Total deferred tax assets – non-current	\$ 0

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2022 decreased by \$735 comparing to that as of December 31, 2021 due to the uncertainty of the realization of the entire deferred tax asset.

The provision for income tax consisted of the following:

California income tax – current	\$ 800
Total provision for income taxes	\$ 800

The Company files income/franchise tax returns on a consolidated basis with its parent company with the U.S. federal and state of California and Delaware. The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years 2019 to 2022 and California and Delaware income tax examinations by tax authorities for years 2018 to 2022. The Company has not been notified of any commencements of examinations of any open tax years by any tax authorities.

The Company has adopted the provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in FASB ASC 740-10. As a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10, the Company did not record any contingent tax liabilities.

It is the Company's policy that if a tax liability related to uncertain tax position was recorded, it would recognize any associated interest and penalties in operating expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized no interest expense and penalties and had no amount accrued at December 31, 2022 as a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10.

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

### 5. **FRANCHISING**

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company was engaged in selling and marketing of the proprietary business model and trademark owned by its Parent company and operated as the franchisor for franchisee operated learning centers. There were eight franchisees in operation mostly in California as of December 31, 2022.

#### 6. **SUBSEQUENT EVENT**

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 17, 2023, the date on which the financial statements were available to be issued.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT DECEMBER 31, 2021

\* \* \*

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

## DECEMBER 31, 2021

	Page No.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1-2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
Balance Sheet	3 - 4
Statement of Comprehensive Income (loss)	5
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	8 - 12

## C. G. UHLENBERG LLP



#### CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. San Jose, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. (the Company) which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of comprehensive income(loss), changes in shareholder's equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

C G Whlenberg UP

February 18, 2022

Fremont, California

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2021

## **ASSETS**

Current Assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 43,618
Account receivable	14,640
Related party receivable	 525,946
Total Current Assets	584,204
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 584,204

(Continued)

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2021

## **LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY**

Current Liabilities:	
Related party payable	\$ 228,913
Total Current Liabilities	228,913
Other Liabilities:	
Deferred franchise fee	3,770
Deferred training fee	 1,665
Total Other Liabilities	5,435
Total Liabilities	234,348
	 _
Shareholder's Equity	
Common stock, par value \$0.001, 1,000 shares authorized;	
1,000 shares issued and outstanding	1
Additional paid-in capital	29,999
Retained Earnings	319,856
Total Shareholder's Equity	 349,856
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY	\$ 584,204

(Concluded)

## STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenues:	
Franchise fee	\$ 242,716
Training fee	 700
Total Revenue-Net	242 416
Total Revenue-Net	 243,416
Operating Expenses	
Legal & professional fees	91,591
Software license	 1,950
Total Operating Expenses	 93,541
Net Income from Operations	149,875
Income before Provision for Income Taxes	 149,875
Provision for Income Taxes	800
Net Income	 149,075
	- ,
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax	 
Total Comprehensive Income	\$ 149,075

## STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

	Common	Common Stock		Additional		Retained		
	No. of Shares	An	nount	Paid	l-in Captial	F	Earnings	 Total
Balance as of December 31, 2020	1,000	\$	1	\$	29,999	\$	170,781	\$ 200,781
Net Income							149,075	 149,075
Balance as of December 31, 2021	1,000	\$	1	\$	29,999	\$	319,856	\$ 349,856

## STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: Net Income Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:	\$ 149,075
Changes in assets and liabilities:	
Increase in account receivable	3,552
Increase in accounts receivable - related party	(244,667)
Increase in other liabilities	(2,301)
Increase in accounts payable - related party	 94,341
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents	 <del>-</del>
The increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents	 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year	43,618
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$ 43,618
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:	
Cash paid during the year for:	
Interest	\$ -
Income taxes	\$ 800

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### General

Afficient Academy of America, Inc. (the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of Afficient Academy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Parent), was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on November 22, 2016. The Company was also qualified to transact business in the State of California commencing on December 2, 2016. The Company operates as a franchisor which grants franchisees the right to establish and operate children's learning centers under their proprietary "Afficient Academy" trade mark and business model. The Company relies on its Parent company for financial support until it develops wider franchisee base.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

The Company uses the accrual method of accounting for financial statements and income tax purposes. Revenue is recognized when earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable.

#### Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from franchise fees, teacher training fees and royalty fees. Initial franchise fee and training fees; are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. Royalties are based on performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with original maturities of three months or shorter at investment date are considered to be cash equivalents.

#### Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Following current accounting literature for other comprehensive income (loss), elements of other comprehensive income is reported net of tax or gross of tax with aggregate tax effect disclosed separately. Our elements of other comprehensive income primarily consist of currency translation adjustments. The Company has no other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2021.

#### Management Estimates

#### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry and, accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. Risks include competition from companies with greater resources and well-established franchising approach. Development of sales channels and networks in a rapidly changing environment also indicate uncertainties in the business operation.

#### Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has adopted in 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2014-09 – (ASC 606) Revenue from Contracts with Customers, a new standard that replaces most revenue recognition guidance under current U.S. GAAP. This update requires the Company to reevaluate when revenue is recorded on a transaction. This update also requires additional disclosures about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements and estimates.

Under the previous standards, initial franchise fees and training fees were recognized as revenue when the related franchisees signed a facility lease and completed the Company's new franchisee training. Royalties are calculated at the numbers of enrolled students monthly and recognized in a lag over the agreement. By the adoption of ASC 606, initial franchise fee and training fees, are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective franchise agreement. Royalties are entirely based on performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur. The Company's Financial Statements reflect the application of ASC 606 guidance beginning in 2021. As the Company evolves, management continues to evaluate the adoption method and the potential impact that the implementation of ASC 606 will have on the financial statements, specifically related to revenue disclosures which are expected to expand and may require judgement in certain areas.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02 – Leases (Topic 842), revising accounting for operating leases for lessees. This update requires a lessee to recognize a liability to make lease payment and an asset representing its right to use the asset for the lease term on the balance sheet. Additionally, this update requires both qualitative and specific quantitative disclosures. These amendments in this update are effective for the Company beginning 2022 and early adoption is permitted. The Company intends to adopt the accounting for leases beginning in 2022.

The Company has adopted in 2021, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-15 – Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. This amendment addresses cash flow statement classification of activity

#### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

related to debt and certain other activities. There is no significant impact to the Company's cash flow statement by the adoption of ASU-2016-15.

#### 2. <u>CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS</u>

The cash balance as of December 31, 2021, consisted of the following:

The Company maintains its cash balances at East West Bank. The Company's bank balances are insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount up to \$250,000 per bank. As of December 31, 2021, the bank balance was fully covered by FDIC insurance.

#### 2. <u>ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE</u>

The Company utilizes the reserve method to account for its bad debt expenses. Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2021:

Accounts receivable	\$	14,640
Allowance for doubtful accounts		
Total Accounts Receivable	•	14.640
Total Accounts Receivable	<u> </u>	14,040

There was no bad debt expense for the year ended December 31, 2021.

#### 3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2021, the Company's receivable from its affiliated company-Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley, Inc.in the amount of \$525,947, was made up of the franchise fee, training fees and royalty fees from franchisees that were collected by Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley on behalf of the Company.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company's payable to its parent company in the account of \$148,913, was made up of \$49,186 in software license fee charged by the Parent and the Company's operating expenses in the amount of \$179,727 advanced by the Parent.

#### 4 **INCOME TAXES**

The Company accounts for its income taxes under the asset and liability approach whereby the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of

### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

assets and liabilities are recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities. Effective federal and state income tax rates have been applied in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2021, are as follows:

Non-current:	
State taxes	\$ 168
Deferred revenue	908
Valuation allowance	 (1,344)
Total deferred tax assets – non-current	\$ 0

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2021 was increased by \$264 comparing to that as of December 31, 2020 due to the uncertainty of the realization of the entire deferred tax asset.

The provision for income tax consisted of the following:

California income tax – current	\$ 800
Total provision for income taxes	\$ 800

The Company files income/franchise tax returns on a consolidated basis with its parent company with the U.S. federal and state of California and Delaware. The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years 2018 to 2021 and California and Delaware income tax examinations by tax authorities for years 2017 to 2021. The Company has not been notified of any commencements of examinations of any open tax years by any tax authorities.

The Company has adopted the provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in FASB ASC 740-10. As a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10, the Company did not record any contingent tax liabilities.

It is the Company's policy that if a tax liability related to uncertain tax position was recorded, it would recognize any associated interest and penalties in operating expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized no interest expense and penalties and had no amount accrued at December 31, 2021 as a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10.

#### 5. **FRANCHISING**

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company was engaged in selling and marketing of the proprietary business model and trademark owned by its Parent company and operated as the franchisor for franchisee operated learning centers. There were ten franchisees in operation mostly in California as of December 31, 2021.

#### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

#### 6. <u>SUBSEQUENT EVENT</u>

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 18<sup>th</sup>, 2022, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

In response to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the various resulting government directives, the company has continued to monitor the implications of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, as well as our customers' and/ or suppliers' businesses.

Considering the changing nature and continuing uncertainty around the COVID-19 pandemic, our ability to predict the impact of COVID-19 on our business in future periods remains limited. The effects of the pandemic on our business are unlikely to be fully realized, or reflected in the company's financial results, until future periods.

As of the date of this report, the Company has not experienced any significant impact to the Company's financial condition or operational result due to the pandemic.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT DECEMBER 31, 2020

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

## DECEMBER 31, 2020

	Page No.
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1-2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
Balance Sheet	3 - 4
Statement of Comprehensive Income (loss)	5
Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity	6
Statement of Cash Flows	7
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	8 - 11

## C. G. UHLENBERG LLP



#### CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. San Jose, California

#### Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. (the Company) which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of comprehensive income(loss), changes in shareholder's equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### **Auditor's Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Afficient Academy of America, Inc. as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

C G Uhlenberg LLP

March 18, 2021 Fremont, California

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2020

## **ASSETS**

Current Assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	43,618
Related party receivable		281,278
Total Current Assets		324,896
TOTAL ACCOUNT	Φ.	224.006
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	324,896

(Continued)

## BALANCE SHEET December 31, 2020

## **LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY**

Current Liabilities: Related party payable	\$ 134,572
Total Current Liabilities	 134,572
Total Liabilities	 134,572
Shareholder's Equity Common stock, par value \$0.001, 1,000 shares authorized;	
1,000 shares issued and outstanding	1
Additional paid-in capital	29,999
Retained Earnings	 160,324
Total Shareholder's Equity	 190,324
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY	\$ 324,896

(Concluded)

## STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Revenue:	
Franchise fee	\$ 191,978
Training fee	500
Royalty fee	 8,663
Total Revenue-Net	\$ 201,141
Operating Expenses	
Legal & professional fees	13,360
Business license & tax	538
Office expense	328
Software license	 1,800
Total Operating Expenses	 16,026
Net Income from Operations	 185,114
Income before Provision for Income Taxes	185,114
Provision for Income Taxes	 800
Net Income	184,314
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax	 
Total Comprehensive Income	\$ 184,314

## STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

	Common	Stoc	k	Ad	ditional	F	Retained	
	No. of Shares	An	nount	Paid	-in Captial	<u>F</u>	Earnings	 Total
Balance as of December 31, 2019	1,000	\$	1	\$	29,999	\$	(23,990)	\$ 6,010
Net Income			-				184,314	184,314
Balance as of December 31, 2020	1,000	\$	1	\$	29,999	\$	160,324	\$ 190,324

## STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:  Net Income  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used for operating activities:  Changes in assets and liabilities:	\$	184,314
Increase in accounts receivable - related party		(199,640)
Increase in accounts payable - related party		17,826
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		2,500
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents		2,500
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		41,118
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year	\$	43,618
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:		
Cash paid during the year for:		
Interest Income taxes	\$ \$	800

#### NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

#### 1. <u>SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES</u>

#### General

Afficient Academy of America, Inc. (the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of Afficient Academy, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Parent), was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on November 22, 2016. The Company was also qualified to transact business in the State of California commencing on December 2, 2016. The Company operates as a franchisor which grants franchisees the right to establish and operate children's learning centers under their proprietary "Afficient Academy" trade mark and business model. The Company relies on its Parent company for financial support until it develops wider franchisee base.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

The Company uses the accrual method of accounting for financial statements and income tax purposes. Revenue is recognized when earned and measurable; expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable.

#### Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from franchise fees upon franchisee initiation, teacher training fees and royalty fees based on franchisee's student enrollment.

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in interest rates. Commercial papers, negotiable certificates of deposit, and bank acceptances with original maturities of three months or shorter at investment date are considered to be cash equivalents.

#### Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Following current accounting literature for other comprehensive income (loss), elements of other comprehensive income is reported net of tax or gross of tax with aggregate tax effect disclosed separately. Our elements of other comprehensive income primarily consist of currency translation adjustments. The Company has no other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2020.

# NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

# **Management Estimates**

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

# Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic industry and, accordingly, can be affected by a variety of factors. Risks include competition from companies with greater resources and well-established franchising approach. Development of sales channels and networks in a rapidly changing environment also indicate uncertainties in the business operation.

#### Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has adopted in 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2014-09 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers, a new standard that replaces most revenue recognition guidance under current U.S. GAAP. This update requires the Company to reevaluate when revenue is recorded on a transaction. This update also requires additional disclosures about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements and estimates.

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02 – Leases (Topic 842), revising accounting for operating leases for lessees. This update requires a lessee to recognize a liability to make lease payment and an asset representing its right to use the asset for the lease term on the balance sheet. Additionally, this update requires both qualitative and specific quantitative disclosures. These amendments in this update are effective for the Company beginning 2022 and early adoption is permitted. The Company intends to adopt the accounting for leases beginning in 2022.

The Company has adopted in 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-15 – Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. This amendment addresses eight issues for which current GAAP does not include specific guidance or is unclear, pertaining to cash flow statement classification of activity related to debt and certain other activities.

There is no significant impact to the Company's financial statement by the adoption of ASU-2016-15.

# NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

# 2. <u>CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS</u>

The cash balance as of December 31, 2020, consisted of the following:

Checking \$ 43,618

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents \$\\\\\$43,618

The Company maintains its cash balances at East West Bank. The Company's bank balances are insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount up to \$250,000 per bank. As of December 31, 2020, the bank balance was fully covered by FDIC insurance.

# 3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2020, the Company's receivable from its affiliated company-Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley, Inc. in the amount of \$281,279, was the franchise fee, training fees and royalty fees from franchisees that were collected by Afficient Academy Learning Center of Silicon Valley on behalf of the Company.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company's payable to its parent company was \$134,572, made up ,of \$47,236 in software license fee charged by the Parent and the Company's operating expenses in the amount of \$87,336 advanced by the Parent.

# 4 **INCOME TAXES**

The Company accounts for its income taxes under the asset and liability approach whereby the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities are recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities. Effective federal and state income tax rates have been applied in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020, are as follows:

Non-current:	
State taxes	\$ 168
Valuation allowance	 (168)
Total deferred tax assets – non-current	\$ 0

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2020 was decreased by \$5,153 comparing to that as of December 31, 2019 due to the uncertainty of the realization of the entire deferred tax asset. The provision for income tax consisted of the following:

# NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

California income tax – current \$\\ \\$00\$

Total provision for income taxes \$\\ \\$00\$

The Company files income/franchise tax returns on a consolidated basis with its parent company with the U.S. federal and state of California and Delaware. The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for all years since incorporation and California and Delaware income tax examinations by tax authorities for all years since incorporation. The Company has not been notified of any commencements of examinations of any open tax years by any tax authorities.

The Company has adopted the provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in FASB ASC 740-10. As a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10, the Company did not record any contingent tax liabilities.

It is the Company's policy that if a tax liability related to uncertain tax position was recorded, it would recognize any associated interest and penalties in operating expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized no interest expense and penalties and had no amount accrued at December 31, 2020 as a result of the implementation of FASB ASC 740-10.

# 5. **FRANCHISING**

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company was engaged in selling and marketing of the proprietary business model and trademark owned by its Parent company and operated as the franchiser for franchisee operated learning centers. There were ten franchisees in operation as of December 31, 2020.

## 6. **SUBSEQUENT EVENT**

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 18, 2021, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

The Covid-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020, with no sign of slowing down throughout the date of this report. Measures taken by various governments to contain the virus have affected economic activity globally and the Company's business in various ways. The main impact is the reduction of economic activity with all of the employees and customers interface through the web instead of in person. Nonetheless, the Company financial results and condition has not been adverse impacted by the pandemic.

# NOTES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

As the duration of the COVID-19 crisis and negative impact on global economic activity is unknown, the exact impact on the Company's activities in 2021 and thereafter cannot be accurately predicted.

# **EXHIBIT B**

# FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

# AFFICIENT ACADEMY<sup>TM</sup>

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Page

ARTICLE 1.	RECITALS	1
1.01	The Afficient Academy Learning Center System	1
1.02	Proprietary Marks	1
1.03	Operating Standards	1
1.04	Franchisee Desires A License	1
1.05	Granting of Franchises	2
ARTICLE 2.	GRANT OF FRANCHISE	2
2.01	Grant of Franchise; Territory	2
2.02	Further Rights & Privileges	3
2.03	Term and Renewal	3
ARTICLE 3.	FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS & DUTIES	4
3.01	Initial Fees	4
3.02	Royalties & Registration Fees	4
3.03	Selection and Lease of Premises	5
3.04	Advertising, Public Relations and Marketing	6
3.05	Late and Insufficient Payments	6
3.06	Operation of Learning Center	7
3.07	Use of Commercial Symbols	9
3.08	System Improvements	10
3.09	Uniform Network	10
3.10	Responsibility for Costs and Expenses	11
3.11	Compliance with Law; Good Learning Center Practices	11
3.12	Indemnification	11
3.13	Insurance	12
3.14	Encumbrances	12
3.15	Record Keeping; Inspections; Audits; Reports; Surveys	12
3.16	Right of Entry	13
ARTICLE 4.	FRANCHISOR'S OBLIGATIONS	13
4.01	Pre-Opening Services.	13
4.02	Support for Learning Center Operations	14

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

(continued)

Page
------

4.03	Protection of Mark	15
ARTICLE 5.	TERMINATION	15
5.01	Termination by Franchisee; Liquidated Damages	15
5.02	Immediate Termination by Franchisor	15
5.03	Termination After Notice by Franchisor	16
5.04	Rights and Duties on Termination	17
ARTICLE 6.	TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT	19
6.01	Prior Offering and Consent; Conditions For Approval	19
6.02	Death or Disability	20
6.03	Right of First Refusal	21
6.04	Assignment to Franchisee Entity	21
6.05	Consent Does Not Constitute Waiver	22
6.06	Transfer or Assignment By Franchisor	22
ARTICLE 7.	ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS AND PROVISIONS	23
7.01	Independent Status	23
7.02	Whole Agreement; Amendments; Construction	23
7.03	No Representations or Warranties	23
7.04	Severability; Additional Assurances	23
7.05	Remedies	24
7.06	Notices	24
7.07	Successors and Assigns; Governing Law; Jurisdiction	25
7.08	Limitation of Claims	25
7.09	Waiver of Punitive Damages	25
7.10	Acknowledgment of Understanding; Opportunity to Consult	25

#### AFFICIENT ACADEMY<sup>TM</sup> FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS AGRI	EEMENT	betwee	n Afficient	Academy	of Am	erica, I	nc., a	Delaware	corpora	ation	,
hereinafter	referred	to	as "Franc	chisor",	and _					, a	1
			herein	after refer	red to as	s "Fran	chisee'	', is made	on the	basis	3
of the follow	ing unders	standing	gs and recita	als and in	consider	ation o	f the fo	ollowing p	romises	, and	1
the parties he	ereto, inten	ding to	be legally b	ound, agr	ee as fol	lows:					

#### **ARTICLE 1. RECITALS**

#### 1.01 The Afficient Academy Learning Center System.

As the result of the expenditure of time, effort and money in research and development, Franchisor has developed and has the right to license a method and system (hereinafter referred to as the "Afficient Academy System" or "System") for the development and operation of a learning center (which business is herein referred to as an "Afficient Academy Learning Center" or "Learning Center"). Franchisor is in the process of developing a network (hereinafter referred to as the "Afficient Academy Network" or "Network") of franchises to use the System on a mutually cooperative and interrelated basis.

#### 1.02 Proprietary Marks.

Franchisor grants franchises to be operated under the proprietary service mark "Afficient Academy" (herein referred to as the "Mark"). Franchisor continues to develop, use and control the Mark so that consumer recognition thereof will continue, and Franchisee agrees to represent the System's high standards of service, quality and appearance.

## 1.03 Operating Standards.

Franchisee acknowledges reading this Agreement and Franchisor's Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document and understands and accepts the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this Agreement as being reasonable and necessary to maintain Franchisor's high standards of service, quality and appearance, as well as the consistency of these standards by all franchises within the Network, in order to protect and preserve the goodwill of the Marks. Franchisee therefore agrees to operate the Learning Center as an integral part of the Franchisor's Network and System as they may be changed, approved and developed from time to time, and in this operation adhere to the uniform standards, procedures and policies set forth below.

#### 1.04 Franchisee Desires A License.

Franchisee desires to establish a Learning Center under the System, within the territory hereinafter set forth, and to use in connection therewith the Franchisor's Mark and System, and provide learning center curriculums, progressive levels, interactive software and testing programs and other services and products authorized for the Learning Center, as an integral part of the Franchisor's Network, and to derive the benefits of Franchisor's reputation, advice, experience, guidance and know-how.

#### 1.05 Granting of Franchises.

Franchisor grants to franchisees, for considerations, the right to conduct a business utilizing the Franchisor's System, as part of the Franchisor's Network, offering learning center services and products approved by Franchisor, and utilizing its formats, methods, specifications, standards, operating procedures, guidance and Mark.

#### ARTICLE 2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

# 2.01 Grant of Franchise; Territory

- (a) <u>Grant of Franchise</u>. Subject to and upon all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Franchisor grants to Franchisee the right and license, and Franchisee undertakes the obligation to establish and operate a Learning Center under the System and the Mark as Franchisor directs, and to use the Mark in connection with the various learning center services utilized in the operation of the Learning Center from a single specific location (herein referred to as the "Premises") which is located within the area described in Exhibit 1 attached hereto and made a part hereof.
- (b) <u>Territory</u>. Franchisor has the sole authority to determine how many learning centers under the System and the Mark may be supported in the area described in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, Franchisor may determine that this area (the "Territory") can support another learning center. However, so long as Franchisee remains in good standing, as defined herein, Franchisor may not operate, nor will it grant others a license to operate a Learning Center under its System at any location within the Territory without first offering Franchisee an option to purchase under Section 2.01(c) of this Agreement.
- (c) <u>Franchisee Option to Purchase</u>. In the event that Franchisor determines that an additional learning center may be supported within the Territory, the parties shall follow the following steps:
- (i) Franchisor shall provide written notice to Franchisee of its determination to offer another learning center within the Territory.
- (ii) Franchisee shall have no more than sixty (60) days from the date of such notice to provide Franchisor with written notice of Franchisee's intention to operate the additional learning center. Franchisee shall then have an additional thirty (30) days in which to sign the then-current form of franchise agreement for the additional learning center and pay all initial fees due under such franchise agreement to Franchisor in full.
- (iii) If Franchisee declines to open the additional learning center or fails to respond to Franchisor within sixty (60) days of Franchisor's notice to Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the right to operate or grant to another franchisee or franchisees the right and license to operate, a Learning Center under the System and Mark at another location within the Territory. The parties agree that Franchisee's waiver of its option to purchase shall not be deemed a waiver of any future options, except as provided in section 2.01(a)(iv).

- (iv) If Franchisee declines to open an additional learning center and a third party elects to open it, then if Franchisor determines that a third (or more) learning center may be supported within the Territory, Franchisor shall offer the first option to purchase such learning center to the franchisee whose existing learning center is geographically closest to the anticipated location of such additional learning center. If this is not Franchisee, then if the third party franchisee declines, Franchisor shall next offer the learning center to Franchisee before offering it to a new franchisee not operating within the Territory.
- (v) For avoidance of doubt, this section does not apply to any geographic area outside of the Territory as described in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement.

# 2.02 Further Rights & Privileges.

Subject to and upon all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Franchisor further grants to Franchisee the following rights and privileges:

- (a) <u>Marks</u>. Use of the Mark as Franchisor directs, but only within the Territory and only in connection with authorized learning center services including curriculums, software and other services, products and supplies authorized by Franchisor;
- (b) <u>System</u>. Use of the Franchisor's System, which term as herein used refers to the System as presently existing and as it may be developed, changed and improved during the term of this Agreement, in marketing and providing approved learning center services and generally in conducting and operating the Learning Center; and
- (c) <u>Software</u>. Use of the proprietary software licensed by Franchisor ("Software") and a license to permit all enrolled students in Franchisee's Learning Center to use such Software.

#### 2.03 Term and Renewal

- (a) <u>Term</u>. This Agreement and the appointment of Franchisee hereunder shall commence on the date this Agreement is executed and, unless previously terminated as herein provided, shall expire on the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) anniversary of the date on which this Agreement was executed.
- (b) <u>Renewal Options</u>. The term of this Agreement and the appointment hereunder may be extended for an additional term of five years, exercisable by written notice from Franchisee to Franchisor, no less than thirty (30) and no more than one-hundred-eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of the initial term; provided that at the end of the initial term:
- (i) Franchisee is not at the time of the exercise or at the commencement of the extension term, in default of the performance of any of Franchisee's obligations hereunder; and
- (ii) Franchisee has not been in default three (3) or more times within the immediately preceding twelve (12) month period; and

- (iii) All monetary obligations owned by Franchisee to Franchisor have been fully satisfied prior to the commencement of the extension term; and
- (iv) At the option of Franchisor, Franchisee shall execute Franchisor's then-current form of Franchise Agreement which shall waive any initial franchise fees and provide for the same royalty and other fees required by this Agreement; and
- (v) At the option of Franchisor, except to the extent limited by applicable law, Franchisee executes a general release, in a form prescribed by Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor, and its officers, directors, agents and employees, arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 3. FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS & DUTIES

#### 3.01 Initial Fees

- (a) <u>Initial Franchise Fee.</u> In consideration of the grant of franchise, and of the rights and privileges relating thereto, herein above made, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a franchise fee payable upon the signing of this Agreement in the amount of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000). This fee shall be paid solely for the grant of franchise rights and privileges, shall be fully earned upon execution of this Agreement, and shall be in addition to all other fees, royalties, costs and other expenditures of any kind required of Franchisee under the terms hereof, or any sums otherwise becoming due from Franchisee for any reason. The franchise fee, except as provided in subparagraph (c) below, is not refundable under any circumstances.
- (b) <u>Training Fee.</u> In consideration of the training and pre-opening services provided by Franchisor as specified in Section 4.01(a) and 4.02(a), Franchisee shall also pay to Franchisor no later than sixty (60) days prior to opening the Learning Center or two (2) weeks prior to attending training, whichever is earlier, the sum of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) per person scheduled to receive training. The training fee, except as provided in subparagraph (c) below, is not refundable under any circumstances.
- (c) <u>Inability to Open Learning Center</u>. In the event that Franchisee fails to open its Learning Center within 180 days of executing this Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate this Agreement. Franchisor shall not be required to refund any amounts paid by Franchisee unless Franchisor determines, in its sole discretion, that Franchisee's inability to open the Learning Center within the required time frame was due to circumstances beyond Franchisee's control.

## 3.02 Royalties & Registration Fees.

(a) <u>Royalty Amount and Payment Schedule</u>. In further consideration of the grant of franchise and related rights and privileges hereunder, and in consideration of the services to be rendered by Franchisor to Franchisee in support of Franchisee's operations as below provided, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a monthly royalty equal Twenty-two percent (22.0%) of the then-current monthly Recommended Course Price per Enrolled Student, per Subject Matter for which such student enrolls at the Learning Center, on or before the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of each calendar month for the preceding calendar month's enrollment.

- (b) <u>Registration Fee.</u> In further consideration of the grant of franchise and related rights and privileges hereunder, and in consideration of the services to be rendered by Franchisor to Franchisee in support of Franchisee's operations as below provided, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a Registration Fee of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per new Enrolled Student.
- (c) <u>Definitions</u>. As used herein the term "Recommended Course Price" means the posted price Franchisor maintains on its website and which it charges in its own Learning Center(s) to Enrolled Students. Franchisor shall give Franchisee at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice before changing the Recommended Course Price. "Enrolled Student" means every student enrolled as of the last day of the calendar month. A new Enrolled Student is a student who enrolls in a particular month. A student who has previously enrolled in the Learning Center but who terminates in a prior month and later re-enrolls is counted as a new Enrolled Student. As used herein, "Subject Matter" means each academic subject for which Franchisor provides Software or a curriculum for use in the Learning Center.

#### 3.03 Selection and Lease of Premises.

- (a) Unless otherwise agreed by Franchisor, Franchisee must have identified an approved location and be prepared to sign the lease for such Premises at the time this Agreement is signed. In any event, and unless otherwise specified by Franchisor, Franchisee shall commence business operations within 180 days of the date this Agreement is signed. Franchisee must put up permanent electrical signage within one month of opening the business. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor's furnishing minimum site criteria for the Premises does not constitute an express or implied assurance, representation or warranty of any kind.
- (b) Franchise may not execute any lease without prior approval of its site by Franchisor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
  - (c) Franchisee's Lease must contain each of the following provisions:
- (i) a provision granting Franchisee the right to assign the lease without penalty to Franchisor upon termination or expiration of this Agreement; and
- (ii) a provision that the lessor will notify Franchisor of any breach of Franchisee's lease, and allow Franchisor a reasonable opportunity to cure the breach; and
- (iii) A provision allowing Franchisor to assume Franchisee's Lease, at its option, in the event of material breach or abandonment by Franchisee; and
- (iv) a provision granting Franchisor the right to exercise any right to renew the lease, if a right exists and Franchisee fails to exercise the right; and
- (v) a provision that the lease may not be materially modified without Franchisor's prior written consent and that Franchisor will receive copies of all such modifications when proposed and when executed.

# 3.04 Advertising, Public Relations and Marketing.

Recognizing the value of advertising, public relations and marketing programs, and the importance of the standardization of these programs to promote and further the goodwill and public image of the Franchisor's System and Marks, Franchisee agrees as follows:

- (a) <u>Grand Opening Advertising</u>. Franchisee shall spend a minimum of Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000) to promote the opening of its Learning Center no later than three (3) month after opening for business.
- (b) On-Going Advertising. On an on-going basis, Franchisor does not require Franchisee to spend a minimum amount on advertising, but Franchisee acknowledges that advertising is an integral and important part of promoting its Learning Center. Franchisor strongly recommends that Franchisee engage in advertising for its Learning Center.
- (c) Advertising Standards. All advertising by Franchisee shall be completely factual and shall conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising. Franchisee agrees to refrain from any business or advertising practice that may be injurious to the Franchisor's System or the goodwill associated with the Mark. Without limiting the foregoing, Franchisee agrees that all advertising and promotions by Franchisee in any form and in any medium shall be conducted in a dignified manner and shall conform to such standards and requirements as Franchisor may from time to time designate in writing. Franchisee may not place advertisements targeted in any material manner into another franchisee's territory without that franchisee's prior written consent. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor (by mail, return receipt requested), for prior written approval, samples of all advertising and promotional plans and materials that Franchisee desires to use and that have not been prepared or previously approved by Franchisor. If written approval thereof is not received by Franchisee, Franchisor shall be deemed not to have given the required approval. Franchisor's approval of advertising or promotional plans does not constitute permission or approval to place such advertisements into another franchisee's territory.

# 3.05 Late and Insufficient Payments

- (a) <u>Late Payment Amount</u>. Any payment not sent by Franchisee by the due date or not made available for bank draw by Franchisor, as required by this Agreement, shall be deemed overdue. If any payment is overdue, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor, in addition to the overdue amount, an interest amount calculated at one percent (1%) per month of the overdue amount. This total is due upon receipt of the past due invoice and shall be deposited directly to Franchisor's bank account, as specified by Franchisor.
- (b) <u>Insufficient Fee Penalties</u>. Any payment or draw due to Franchisor that is rejected for insufficient funds shall immediately accrue an Insufficient Fee penalty of Twenty-Five Dollars (\$25.00) due immediately to Franchisor. Franchisee shall also be required to immediately pay the underlying amount that is unpaid to Franchisor.
- (c) <u>No Waiver</u>. Franchisee acknowledges that this Section 3.05 shall not constitute an agreement by Franchisor to accept any payments after they are due or a commitment by Franchisor to extend credit to, or otherwise finance Franchisee's Learning Center. Further, Franchisee acknowledges that failure to pay all amounts when due shall

constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement, as provided in Section 5.02, notwithstanding the provisions of this Section.

# 3.06 Operation of Learning Center.

Franchisee shall follow the Franchisor's start-up timetable as delivered during the Franchisor's training program regarding the development and commencement of Learning Center operations and shall thereafter, continuously operate the Learning Center devoting Franchisee's full time, best efforts, skills, and diligence to the Learning Center, selling and providing only those learning center services, products and supplies authorized or required to be provided as part of the Franchisor's System as set forth in Franchisor's confidential Operations Manual, Policy Manual, and Start-Up Guide (herein all collectively called "Manuals"), including supplements, addenda and amendments thereto, and Franchisee shall not sell or provide other learning center services or products except those which Franchisor, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall approve as being compatible and not interfering with the Franchisor's System, Mark and Network. Specifically and without limiting the foregoing, Franchisee agrees:

- (a) <u>Follow Manuals and Standards</u>. Franchisee shall operate the Learning Center in all respects in accordance with all reasonable requirements of Franchisor from time to time in effect, as set forth in the Manuals and in other communications from Franchisor, maintaining the highest business standards of quality and ethical conduct, and not otherwise so that the Learning Center shall be established and at all times operated as and constitute a business of the highest quality and professionalism. With respect to the Manuals, Franchisee specifically agrees as follows:
- (i) Franchisee shall treat the Manuals and other manuals created and approved for use in the operation of the Learning Center, and the information contained therein, as confidential, and shall use all reasonable efforts to maintain this information as secret and confidential:
- (ii) Franchisee agrees that the Manuals shall remain the sole property of Franchisor; and that Franchisor may, from time to time, revise the contents of any Manual;
- (iii) Franchisee agrees to comply with each new or changed provision of any Manual(s); that no modification of any Manual will alter Franchisee's status and rights under this Agreement; and that Franchisor may update any of the Manuals (or portions thereof) manually or by electronic means via Franchisor's website or otherwise as specified by Franchisor.
- (iv) Franchisee agrees that the master copy of each Manual maintained by Franchisor at its principal office shall be controlling in the event of a dispute relative to the content of any Manual.
- (v) Franchisee agrees to keep all Manuals in a secure location at the Premises.
- (b) <u>Approved Services and Products; Required Services and Products.</u> Franchisee shall offer or sell only those learning center curriculums, services, products and

related supplies that meet Franchisor's standards of quality and have been expressly approved by Franchisor in writing for offer or sale by Franchisee. Franchisee shall refrain from any deviation from Franchisor's standards and specifications for selling services or products, and shall discontinue offering and selling any service or product that Franchisor disapproves in writing from time to time, in its sole discretion. Franchisee must offer at least one (1) Afficient Academy educational program, and failure to do so shall constitute a material default. However, Franchisee shall not be required to implement or offer all Afficient Academy educational programs and may not offer any program for which Franchisee has not completed training, hired an approved tutor, and otherwise fulfilled all Franchisor requirements for implementing such program.

- Non-Disclosure. Franchisee shall not at any time, either during or after the (c) term of this Agreement, copy or duplicate, or permit the copying or duplication, nor publish, disclose or in any manner reveal, or permit the publication, disclosure or revelation in any manner, to any person or entity, except employees of Franchisee on a need to know basis (and then only after obtaining a written agreement of such employees, in a form acceptable to Franchisor, made for the benefit of and enforceable by Franchisor as well as of and by Franchisee, to be bound by this commitment of nondisclosure), any portion of the Manuals, supplements, addenda or amendments thereto, or any other information or material supplied by Franchisor to Franchisee and designated as confidential information. Franchisee hereby recognizes and agrees that these materials and information are proprietary trade secrets of Franchisor and are disclosed to Franchisee in strict confidence solely for use in the development and operation of the franchise during the term of this Agreement and on the condition that Franchisee will not use these trade secrets in any other business or capacity. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee will not acquire any interest in the trade secrets, other than the right to utilize them in the operation of the Learning Center during the term of this franchise and that Franchisee will maintain the confidentiality of these trade secrets during and after the term of this Agreement.
- (d) Management of Learning Center. Franchisee is not required to personally manage the Learning Center during the term of this Agreement, but Franchisee must employ a competent individual to manage the Learning Center full-time. Such individual must have successfully completed the Franchisor's training program then in effect as provided for in Section 4.02(e) hereof. This individual must devote to the management of the Learning Center at least the equivalent of the working time not devoted by Franchisee; and provided further, that if Franchisee is at any time, by reason of sickness, disability or other cause, rendered unable to devote full working time to the operation, Franchisee shall employ one or more substitutes, all to the end that there shall be devoted to the management of the Learning Center at all times at least the full working time of one competent individual who has successfully completed Franchisor's training program. In no event shall Franchisee or any spouse of Franchisee or an owner of Franchisee conduct or operate, directly or indirectly, or be employed by or associated in any way with any business which is competitive with the operation of the Learning Center, or any portion thereof.
- (e) <u>Attend and Satisfactorily Complete All Training</u>. Franchisee shall, at Franchisee's sole expense, attend and satisfactorily complete (or have employees of Franchisee attend and satisfactorily complete) all training programs as provided for in Sections 4.01 and 4.02 hereof, and shall ensure that any future managers attend and complete such training.

Franchisee shall provide and carry out further training for Franchisee's tutors in compliance with all requirements of the training and the Manuals.

(f) Operational Efforts. Franchisee shall vigorously pursue and promote sales and activities leading to growth by the Learning Center, marketing the Territory to its fullest potential, avoiding excessive customer complaints and loss of customers, as well as declining revenues, and shall cooperate with Franchisor and other franchisees in the Franchisor's Network in promoting and enhancing the Franchisor's System, Network and Mark.

#### 3.07 Use of Commercial Symbols.

Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee's right to use the Mark is derived solely from this Agreement and is limited to the operation of a Learning Center pursuant to and in compliance with this Agreement and all applicable specifications, standards and operating procedures prescribed by Franchisor in its Manuals from time to time during the term of this Agreement. Specifically and without limiting the foregoing, Franchisee agrees:

- (a) This Agreement does not confer any goodwill or interests in the Mark upon Franchisee.
- (b) Franchisee shall use only the Mark authorized by Franchisor in its Manuals, and shall use the Mark only in the manner authorized and permitted by Franchisor. As required by the Manuals, Franchisee shall obtain Franchisor's prior approval before making certain uses of the Mark, including but not limited to the designation of the particular name for Franchisee's Learning Center, and all signage.
- (c) Franchisee shall use the Mark only in connection with the operation of the Learning Center licensed hereunder and only within the Territory referred to in Section 2.01 of this Agreement.
- (d) Any and all goodwill arising from Franchisee's use of the Mark under the Franchisor's System shall inure solely and exclusively to the benefit of Franchisor, and upon expiration or termination of this Agreement and the license herein granted, except as expressly provided herein, no monetary amount shall be assigned to any goodwill associated with Franchisee's use of the Franchisor's System or Mark.
- (e) The Mark is valid and identifies Franchisor, the Franchisor's System and those licensed under the System. Franchisee agrees not to directly or indirectly contest the validity or ownership of the Mark. Throughout the term of this Agreement, including any extensions thereof, Franchisee shall identify himself or herself as a franchisee of Franchisor in conjunction with any use of the Mark, displaying the Mark in connection with the operation of the Learning Center as Franchisor may specify from time to time.
- (f) Franchisee shall not register the Mark or any part thereof as its trade name or in any domain name without Franchisor's prior written approval.

- (g) Franchisee agrees not to use any Mark licensed under this Agreement in connection with the sale of any unauthorized service or product or in any other manner not expressly approved in writing by Franchisor.
- (h) If it becomes advisable at any time, in Franchisor's sole discretion, for Franchisor or Franchisee to modify or discontinue use of any Mark or use one or more additional or substitute Marks or commercial symbols, Franchisee agrees to promptly comply therewith within a reasonable time after notice by Franchisor, and Franchisor need not reimburse Franchisee for any of Franchisee's expenses or costs in complying with Franchisor's directions.
- (i) Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor's instructions in filing and maintaining fictitious or trade name registrations, and shall execute any documents deemed necessary by Franchisor to protect and maintain the continued validity of the Mark.
- (j) In the event that Franchisee is aware of any use of the Mark or colorable imitation thereof which falsely suggests or represents an association or connection with Franchisor, or other franchisees in the Network, or litigation involving the Mark is instituted or threatened against Franchisee, Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and cooperate fully with Franchisor in connection therewith. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor will have the right to control any litigation with respect to the Mark.

## 3.08 System Improvements.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor may supplement, improve or otherwise alter the System and the methods, procedures and techniques which Franchisee is authorized and required hereunder to utilize in the operation of the Learning Center, including addition to or elimination from the System of services or products or other activities constituting elements thereof. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor shall have sole control and discretion over all supplements, improvements, alterations and development of the System, and the learning center services and products offered there under; that this control and discretion is in the best interests of the System; and that Franchisee will comply with all Franchisor's requirements concerning the System and Network improvements thereto, including the payment of any fees or costs associated therewith. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that these may include, but are not limited to, computer hardware and software systems, educational tools, décor, toys or incentives, training and new course curricula. Franchisee shall seek, in its operation of the Learning Center to develop and conceive such supplements, improvements and alterations, and upon doing so shall in each case promptly and fully advise Franchisor thereof. Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to make use of all supplements, improvements and alterations so conceived or developed by Franchisee, including the right to disseminate the same to all franchisees for their use.

# 3.09 Uniform Network.

Franchisee understands and acknowledges that this franchise and the business carried on therewith will benefit from being an integral part of a network of similar learning center franchises in a variety of locations, utilizing the Franchisor's System in a uniform manner, providing uniform curriculums, programs, services, products and supplies with personnel and

tutors of uniform skill and training, hence capable of mutual complementation and interrelation, particularly in the types and quality of learning center services, products and supplies offered. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees, specifically and without limiting any other obligations of Franchisee expressed in this Agreement, that the interests of the Franchisor's System and Network are vital to the success of each franchisee, and that each franchisee has an obligation to promote and further the Franchisor's System and Network to the fullest extent possible. Therefore, Franchisee agrees to adhere to Franchisor's standards, specifications and requirements concerning the Mark, the Franchisor's System and Network as specified by Franchisor from time to time in its Manuals including, without limitation, the offering of any new services or products, the elimination of any previously specified services or products, and the operation of the Learning Center as an integral part of the Franchisor's Network, cooperating and complementing other Afficient Academy learning center franchises thereof.

# 3.10 Responsibility for Costs and Expenses.

Franchisee will be solely responsible for and shall pay, promptly when due, all costs, expenses, obligations and indebtedness of or in any way rising out of or in connection with the Learning Center and the establishment and operation thereof, including all taxes, assessments and other levies, charges and impositions of any kind of any governmental or regulatory body, federal, state or local, in so far as it relates to the business operations within the granted territory of the Franchisee only.

## 3.11 Compliance with Law; Good Learning Center Practices.

Franchisee's sole expense, with all applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders and other enactment's or requirements of all governmental or regulatory bodies including obtaining any licenses, permits or other entitlement required by any law or laws. Franchisee must adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical conduct in all dealings with Franchisee's clients, suppliers, and Franchisor.

#### 3.12 Indemnification.

- (a) Franchisee shall indemnify Franchisor and its officers, directors and employees and hold them harmless from and against any liability or responsibility for any matter for which Franchisee is responsible under this Section 3.12 or otherwise under this Agreement, and from and against any loss, liability, claims, demands, damages, charges, costs or expenses of any kind whatsoever, including attorney's fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or in connection with any such liability or responsibility, or otherwise out of or in connection with the establishment and operation by Franchisee of the Learning Center, including but not limited to any such matters arising directly or indirectly out of or in connection with any injury to or death of persons or damage to or loss of property.
- (b) As set forth herein, Franchisor agrees to indemnify and hold Franchisee harmless against any liability or responsibility (actual or consequential) from any claim or proceeding brought against Franchisee or any action in which Franchisee is named as a party, arising from or in connection with (i) a claim that any of the trademarks or service marks which

Franchisor directs Franchisee to use in connection with the Franchised Business infringes on the trademark or service mark of any third party; or (ii) a claim that any of the Franchisor's proprietary software licensed to Franchisee for use in connection with the Franchised Business infringes on the patent or copyright rights of any third party. Franchisor's obligation to indemnify is conditioned on Franchisee's timely notification of Franchisor of such claim or proceeding and providing Franchisor with the option, in Franchisor's sole discretion, to defend and/or settle any such claim or proceeding. If Franchisor elects to handle the defense of such claim or proceeding, Franchisor shall have the sole right to select counsel, to provide direction to counsel, and shall have exclusive authority regarding any and all settlement and dispute resolution matters in such claim or proceeding.

#### 3.13 Insurance.

Without limiting its obligations under Section 3.12, Franchisee shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the term of this Agreement insurance coverage in the amounts and types of insurance specified by Franchisor in its Manuals or otherwise in writing. The insurance shall be issued by companies licensed to do business in the state where Franchisee is located and Franchisee shall supply Franchisor with certificates of insurance currently in force reflecting the required insurance coverage. All certificates of insurance shall be renewed annually and Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with a certificate indicating renewal at least 30 days prior to expiration of each certificate. In the event Franchisee fails to furnish these certificates, Franchisor may (but shall not be obligated to) obtain such insurance and Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the cost thereof upon demand. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, raise, lower or change the amounts and types of insurance required and Franchisee agrees to follow Franchisor's directions in this regard as detailed from time to time in Franchisor's Manuals or otherwise in writing.

#### 3.14 Encumbrances.

During the term of this Agreement, except with the prior written consent of Franchisor, Franchisee shall not mortgage, pledge or otherwise assign as security, this Franchise Agreement, the Learning Center or any part thereof.

#### 3.15 Record Keeping; Inspections; Audits; Reports; Surveys

- (a) Record keeping. Franchisee shall throughout the term hereof, maintain and preserve at the Premises full, complete and accurate books, records and accounts of the Learning Center, and supporting data, all in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and utilizing accounting records, software and computer systems approved or specified by Franchisor in the Manuals and updated on a regular basis also as specified in the Manuals. In addition Franchisee shall also maintain an up to date list of customer and staff records.
- (b) <u>Inspection; Audit.</u> Franchisor shall have the right at any time during normal business hours, and without prior notice to Franchisee, to have the books, records, data and financial statements of Franchisee's Learning Center inspected and, at Franchisor's option, audited. Franchisee shall supply its business tax returns to Franchisor annually. Any audit shall be done by a certified public accountant of Franchisor's choice, and shall be at Franchisor's sole

cost and expense, except if any audit discloses an understatement of Gross Sales by two percent (2%) or more, then the entire cost of the audit, including without limitation the charges for any certified public accountant, its employees and the travel, room, board and compensation of Franchisor's employees connected with the audit, shall become immediately due and payable upon receipt of invoice.

- (c) <u>Reports</u>. Unless otherwise required by Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, in such form, detail and manner as Franchisor may require, complete and accurate reports throughout the term of this Agreement as detailed in the Manuals. These reports shall include a monthly profit and loss statement, and specified categories of its expenses including but not limited to its expenses for rent, labor, insurance, janitorial services, broadband service and computer equipment, due on or before the 15th day of each calendar month, for the preceding calendar month.
- (d) <u>Surveys and Studies</u>. The continuing development, improvement and success of the Franchisor's Network and System requires meaningful, timely and accurate information concerning all functions and aspects of the business. In order that the Franchisor's System can be fully evaluated and improved and benefit all franchisees thereof, Franchisee agrees to prepare and forward to Franchisor, at times specified and on forms supplied by Franchisor, information that Franchisor may require for its use in preparing studies and surveys relating to the Learning Center, the System and the Network, containing information specified by Franchisor.

# 3.16 Right of Entry.

Franchisee shall permit Franchisor and its agents the right to enter the premises of the Learning Center at all times during regular business hours, without prior notice to Franchisee, for the purpose of determining compliance with this Agreement and Manuals, as well as for interviewing Franchisee's clients and personnel and conducting on-site market surveys or studies. Franchisee shall cooperate with Franchisor's agents during these visits, and upon notice from Franchisor or its agents, and without limiting Franchisor's other rights under this Agreement, shall take all necessary steps to promptly correct any deficiency detected by Franchisor's agents.

#### ARTICLE 4. FRANCHISOR'S OBLIGATIONS

## 4.01 Pre-Opening Services.

Franchisor shall assist Franchisee and perform initial services as follows:

(a) <u>Initial Training Program</u>. Franchisor shall provide Franchisee and additional trainees specified by Franchisee, with a training program in connection with the management and operation of the Learning Center. The training program will be conducted at locations designated by Franchisor and will be up to ten (10) business days in duration. All segments of the training course shall be attended and successfully completed by Franchisee and Franchisee's trainee(s). Franchisee shall be responsible for paying all travel, living and other expenses incurred by Franchisee and its trainee(s) in attending Franchisor's training program.

- (b) <u>Confidential Operating Manuals</u>. Franchisor shall loan to Franchisee, promptly following the successful completion of Franchisee's training program, one complete copy of Franchisor's Manuals.
- (c) <u>Initial Forms</u>. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with copies of reporting and other operating forms as detailed by Franchisor in its Manuals.
- (d) <u>Site Criteria</u>. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with information about Franchisor's minimum site criteria for Franchisee's use and completion as part of the site evaluation process set forth in Section 3.03 above, containing site characteristics, proximity factors, lease provisions and list of recommended realtors for Franchisee's use.
- (e) <u>Start-Up Guide</u>. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with a prioritized list of activities and steps to take to get Franchisee's Learning Center ready to open.

# 4.02 Support for Learning Center Operations.

Franchisor shall supply to Franchisee, in support and assistance of Franchisee's operations, the following:

- (a) <u>Consultation</u>. Franchisor will make available, at its corporate office, personnel for consultation, in person or by written or telephone communication during normal business hours, concerning questions arising in the day-to-day operation of Franchisee's Learning Center, and will provide specific assistance and support remotely during the first two weeks of Franchisee's operation.
- (b) <u>Franchisee Conventions</u>. Franchisor may but is not required to sponsor annual seminars for updates on new management techniques, industry trends and other topics of interest to all franchisees. In all cases it will be the Franchisee's responsibility to pay all travel, living and other expenses incurred by Franchisee or Franchisee's employee(s) while attending these seminars. Franchisor also has authority to charge fees to Franchisees for attendance of such seminars and conventions. Franchisee's attendance is not mandatory, but is strongly encouraged.
- (c) <u>Updating</u>. Franchisor will disseminate periodic supplements and amendments to its confidential Operations Manual and Policy Manual, as well as other information of general interest to all Franchisees.
- (d) <u>Software</u>. During the term of this Agreement, Franchisor will supply Franchisee with licenses to use the Afficient software in the Learning Center pursuant to the requirements in the Manuals for each subject matter in which Franchisee has received training and has hired a knowledgeable tutor. Franchisor has authority to refuse to license an Afficient software module to Franchisee if Franchisee does not have the training or an acceptable tutor on staff.
- (e) <u>Website</u>. Franchisor will maintain a website that will list Franchisee's Learning Center location and contact information.

(f) <u>Additional Consulting</u>. At Franchisee's request, Franchisor will provide additional support or on-site consulting services in accordance with Franchisor's then-current Consulting Fee Schedule that sets forth acceptable consulting assignments, the skill set required and hourly rate(s). An advance retainer may be required to commence the assignment, with payments for the retainer and other billings due on receipt of invoice.

#### 4.03 Protection of Mark.

Franchisor will take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect the ownership and validity of the Mark. Franchisor will use, and permit Franchisee and other franchisees to use, the Mark only in accordance with the Franchisor's System and the standards and specifications attendant thereto which underlie the goodwill associated with and symbolized by the Mark.

#### **ARTICLE 5. TERMINATION**

# 5.01 Termination by Franchisee; Liquidated Damages.

- (a) <u>Franchisee May Terminate Upon Uncured Franchisor Default</u>. Franchisee shall have the right, at its option, to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Franchisor by registered or certified mail, addressed as provided in Section 7.06, in the event Franchisor defaults in the performance of any agreement on its part to be performed hereunder and the default is not remedied within 30 days after written notice from Franchisee to Franchisor of the default setting forth the nature thereof. Franchisee's termination of this Agreement for any other reason or without notice will be deemed a termination without cause.
- (b) <u>Liquidated Damages</u>. If Franchisee terminates this Agreement without cause, Franchisee shall pay to the Franchisor within ten (10) days of the termination, as liquidated damages for the premature termination of this Agreement and not as a penalty, an amount equal to six times (6 times) the average monthly royalty and registration fees payable to the Franchisor over the last twelve (12) months of the Franchised Learning Center's active operations or the entire period the Franchisee's Learning Center has been open for business, whichever is the shorter period. If Franchisor establishes that Franchisee deliberately reduced its royalties prior to termination without cause, the liquidated damages shall be calculated based on Franchisee's average normal operations over a twelve (12) month period.

## 5.02 Immediate Termination by Franchisor.

Franchiser shall have the right, at its option, to terminate this Agreement and all rights granted Franchisee hereunder, without affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure the default, effective upon receipt of notice by Franchisee, addressed as provided in Section 7.06, upon the occurrence of any of the following events, which Franchisee acknowledges are detrimental to, and reflect unfavorably upon, the operation and reputation of the Franchisor's System, the Mark, the Network, and goodwill thereof:

(a) <u>Abandonment</u>. If operations of the Learning Center cease for a period of five (5) consecutive days, or any shorter period that indicates an intent by Franchisee to discontinue operation of the Learning Center, unless and only to the extent that full operation of

the Learning Center is suspended or terminated due to fire, flood, earthquake or other similar causes beyond Franchisee's control;

- (b) <u>Insolvency</u>; <u>Assignments</u>. If Franchisee becomes insolvent or is adjudicated a bankrupt; or any action is taken by Franchisee, or by others against Franchisee, under any insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization act, and not fully dismissed within thirty (30) days after the institution thereof;
- (c) <u>Unsatisfied Judgments; Levy; Foreclosure</u>. If any judgment is obtained against Franchisee which remains unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or longer (unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been filed); or if execution is levied against Franchisee's Learning Center or any of the property used in the Learning Center and is not discharged within five (5) days; or if the real or personal property of Franchisee's Learning Center shall be sold after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal or constable;
- (d) <u>Criminal Behavior</u>. If Franchisee engages in any dishonest, criminal or unethical behavior or conduct in connection with Franchisee's Learning Center or in such dishonest, criminal or unethical behavior or conduct outside of the Franchised Learning Center but that is reasonably likely, in the sole opinion of Franchisor, to materially and unfavorably affect the Franchisor System, Mark, Network, goodwill or reputation thereof, regardless of whether Franchisee or any of its owners are ultimately charged or convicted of any such crime;
- (e) <u>Misuse of Mark; Unauthorized Disclosure</u>. If Franchisee fails to comply with the covenants contained in Sections 3.07 or Franchisee knowingly discloses to any unauthorized person the contents of any part of Franchisor's Manuals or any other trade secrets or confidential information provided to Franchisee by Franchisor and designated as such;
- (f) <u>Misrepresentation to Franchisor</u>. If Franchisor discovers at any time that Franchisee materially misrepresented any information in applying for the grant of the franchise, Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to immediately terminate Franchisee; and
- (g) <u>Intentional Fraud in Monetary Payments or Reporting</u>. If Franchisor discovers that Franchisee has willfully underpaid Franchisor Royalty or Registration Fees owed to Franchisor, or has materially, incorrectly reported financial matters or enrollment figures to Franchisor on more than one occasion.

#### **5.03** Termination After Notice by Franchisor.

If Franchisee defaults in the performance of any agreement made herein, and the default is not remedied to Franchisor's satisfaction within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from Franchisor to Franchisee; or Franchisee, after curing a default engages in the same default on 2 other occasions within a six (6) month period whether or not these defaults have been corrected after notice, Franchisor shall have the immediate right to terminate Franchisee.

# 5.04 Rights and Duties on Termination.

In the event of any termination of this Agreement, whether by reason of action by Franchisee or Franchisor as above provided, or as elsewhere provided in this Agreement, or by the expiration of the term hereof, the parties shall have the following rights and duties:

- (a) <u>Cease Operation of Learning Center under System and Mark</u>. All rights and privileges herein granted to Franchisee shall immediately terminate and revert to Franchisor, with all rights and goodwill of the Learning Center pertaining thereto, and Franchisee shall surrender all such rights and privileges, shall cease operation of the Learning Center using the Franchisor's System and Mark in all connections, including any colorable imitation thereof or in any manner or for any purpose, or utilize for any purpose any trade name, service mark, trademark, logo or other insignia which is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception or that falsely suggests or indicates a connection or association with Franchisor. Franchisee shall take all action required to cancel all fictitious or assumed name or equivalent registrations relating to Franchisee's use of any Mark, and to remove existing signage bearing any Mark.
- (b) Pay Creditors; Return Manuals; Cease Use of Website. Franchisee shall immediately pay all creditors of the Learning Center, including all sums then owing by Franchisee to Franchisor and shall immediately return without delay all Manuals and all other material described therein (or in any notice from Franchisor) as property of Franchisor, and all forms, advertising matter, and all other materials received by Franchisee from Franchisor and in the possession of Franchisee. Franchisee shall also cease use of any Afficient Academy domain name, URL or home page address and shall not establish any Website using any similar or confusing domain name, URL or home page address.
- (c) <u>Asset Purchase Options On Termination</u>. Unless termination results solely from the proper exercise by Franchisee of Franchisee's election as provided in Section 6.01 hereof, Franchisor shall have the following options, exercisable by written notice to Franchisee (indicating which option(s) Franchisor intends to exercise) at any time within 30 days from the date of termination hereof to: (i) require Franchisee assign to Franchisor the leasehold interest of the Premises in consideration of Franchisor's assumption of the leasing obligations thereunder; and (ii) to purchase from Franchisee all equipment, furnishings, fixtures and other physical assets owned by Franchisee and used in the operation of the Learning Center for the same price paid by Franchisee less depreciation taken (i.e. book value) as of the date of Franchisor's written notice. The purchase price for all of the above assets shall not include any payment for goodwill or other intangibles.
- (d) <u>Transfer Phone Numbers and Social Media Presence</u>. Franchisee shall relinquish and take all steps necessary and hereby irrevocably appoints Franchisor as Franchisee's attorney-in-fact to transfer to Franchisor all right, title and interest in all or any of Franchisee's telephone numbers, fax numbers, cellular phone numbers, social media pages, user accounts and fan pages including the listing, and advertising privileges concurrent therewith, relating in any way to the Learning Center.
- (e) <u>Transfer Customer Information</u>. Franchisee shall relinquish and immediately turn over to Franchisor contact information for every parent, guardian or other adult

responsible for enrolling any child in Franchisee's Learning Center since the inception of this Agreement.

- (f) <u>Franchisor's Rights Following Termination</u>. Following termination of this Agreement, unless termination results from the proper exercise by Franchisee of Franchisee's option as provided in Section 6.01 hereof, Franchisor shall be entitled, either to operate the Learning Center itself, with the use of all assets, including goodwill, reverting and transferred to it on termination as above provided, or to grant the franchise herein granted, and to sell all such properties and assets, to others upon terms and conditions as Franchisor shall determine, and to retain all proceeds of the transaction, in either event, without obligation to Franchisee of any kind.
- (g) <u>Rights Not Exclusive</u>. The foregoing rights of Franchisor upon termination by reason of breach or default hereunder shall not be exclusive, but shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights available to Franchisor under the terms hereof or at law or in equity. Termination of this Agreement under any circumstances shall not abrogate, impair, release, or extinguish any debt, obligation, or liability of Franchisee which may have accrued hereunder, including without limitation any debt, obligation, or liability which was the cause of termination. All covenants and agreements of Franchisee that by their terms or by reasonable implication are to be performed, in whole or in part, after the termination of this Agreement, shall survive termination.
- (h) <u>Activities Following Termination</u>. Franchisee acknowledges that the elements comprising the Franchisor's System are unique, proprietary and distinctive and have been developed by Franchisor as the result of great expenditures of time, effort and money; that Franchisee has regular and continuing access to valuable trade secret and confidential information; and that Franchisee recognizes its obligation to keep this trade secret and confidential information in confidence pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. Franchisee therefore agrees as follows:
- (i) <u>Nondisclosure</u>. If, prior to its expiration, this Agreement is terminated by Franchisor in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or by Franchisee without cause, or this Agreement expires pursuant to the terms hereof and is not renewed, Franchisee shall not thereafter use or disclose to any person or entity any trade secrets, knowhow, improvements, marketing plans, formulas, processes or other elements constituting proprietary and confidential aspects of the Franchisor's System.
- (ii) <u>Competition</u>. Franchisee acknowledges that in addition to the license of the Marks hereunder, Franchisor has also licensed a large body of commercially valuable information including, but not limited to, operations, marketing, advertising and related materials and that the value of this information derives not only from the time, effort and money which went into its compilation but from the usage of same by all franchisees in the Franchisor's Network to develop System goodwill. Franchisee further acknowledges that this information is not generally known in the industry and is beyond Franchisee's present skills and experience (or if Franchisee had prior related experience, it was not experience or knowledge remotely comparable to Franchisor's experience and knowledge) and that to develop this information would be expensive, time-consuming and difficult. Franchisee finally acknowledges that gaining

access to Franchisor's marketing techniques, operational procedures, business practices and management methods used in Franchisee's Learning Center is a primary reason for entering into this Agreement. Franchisee therefore agrees that, unless this Agreement is properly terminated pursuant to Section 5.01(a) hereof, in order to foster System loyalty, promote inter-brand competition and protect the ability of Franchisor to sell new franchise rights within the area, Franchisee will not, for a period of twelve (12) months, commencing on the effective date of termination, or the date on which Franchisee ceases the business conducted pursuant to this Agreement, whichever is later, have any interest as an owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, representative or agent, in any business competitive with that theretofore constituting the operations of a Learning Center or any portion thereof, within fifty (50) miles of Franchisee's Territory (except ownership of securities that are traded on a stock exchange or on the over-the-counter market representing five percent (5%) or less of the equity or voting power of the issuer thereof). It is understood and agreed by Franchisee that the purpose of this covenant is not to deprive Franchisee of means of livelihood and will not do so, because Franchisee earned a livelihood before entering into this Agreement and has the skills to do so in the future, but is rather to protect the goodwill and interests of Franchisor, the Franchisor's System and Network of Afficient Academy franchises. The provisions of this Section 5.03 apply to all Franchisee owners and their spouses.

(i) <u>Irreparable Injury</u>. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee's violation of any of the terms of this Section 5.03 would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be available, and Franchisee accordingly consents to the issuance of an injunction prohibiting or compelling Franchisee to abide by the terms of this Section 5.03.

#### ARTICLE 6. TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT

#### 6.01 Prior Offering and Consent; Conditions For Approval.

Franchisee understands and acknowledges that the rights and duties created by this Agreement are personal to Franchisee and that Franchisor has granted this franchise in reliance upon the individual character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity of Franchisee. Therefore, except as hereinafter provided at Section 6.04, neither this Agreement or the Learning Center, or any part or all of the ownership of Franchisee therein (including, but not limited to voting stock, securities convertible thereto, partnership and sole proprietorship interests), may be voluntarily, involuntarily, directly or indirectly assigned, sold, issued or otherwise transferred by Franchisee or its owner(s) until this Agreement and the Learning Center have first been offered to Franchisor as provided in Section 6.03, and, if Franchisor does not accept this offer, without the prior written consent of Franchisor which shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided that the following conditions are met prior to, or concurrently with, the effective date of the assignment:

(a) The proposed transferee meets Franchisor's uniform standards of qualification then applicable with respect to all applicants for a Afficient Academy Learning Center including, but not limited to financial strength, business experience, profile fit and other relevant business considerations; and

- (b) As of the effective date of the transfer, all obligations of Franchisee under all written contracts and agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor are fully satisfied; and
- (c) A transfer fee in an amount equal to Franchisor's most recent pre-opening services fee, corresponding to Section 3.01(b) above, is paid to Franchisor at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the transfer to cover Franchisor's costs in evaluating and training the proposed transferee, as well as effecting the transfer; and
- (d) The transferee shall have signed and agreed to be bound by the form of franchise agreement (and other ancillary agreements, if any) as are then used by Franchisor in the grant of franchises which shall: (i) waive the initial franchise fee; (ii) provide for a term equal to the remaining term hereof; and (iii) provide for the same royalty fee and other fees required in this Agreement; and
- (e) The proposed transferee attends and completes all segments of the training program to Franchisor's satisfaction; and
- (f) Except to the extent limited by applicable law, Franchisee and its owner(s) have executed a general release, in form satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates, directors, officers, employees and agents; and
- (g) Franchisor approves the material terms and conditions of the assignment, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, including particularly a determination that the price and terms of payment are not so burdensome as to adversely affect the future operations of the Learning Center by the proposed transferee in compliance with the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement; and
- (h) In the event that Franchisee is transferring less than all of the Afficient Academy Businesses it owns in a single Territory, Franchisee provides to Franchisor for Franchisor's approval a proposed division of its Territory, acceptable to the proposed transferee, such that in the event of assignment the proposed transferee shall receive a portion of the Territory in which to operate the transferred Learning Center.

# 6.02 Death or Disability.

In the event of the death or disability of Franchisee or of a principal owner of Franchisee, or if Franchisee is a corporation or partnership, or the owner of a majority interest therein, the executor, administrator, conservator or other personal representative of such person shall transfer his interest within a reasonable time, not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of death or disability, to a third party approved by Franchisor. The term "disability" means a mental or physical disability, impairment or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent Franchisee from supervising management and operation of the franchise for thirty or more consecutive days. This transfer, including, without limitation, transfers by devise or inheritance, shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions contained in Section 6.01 and the following:

(a) <u>Management by Franchisor</u>. If, after death or disability, Franchisee's Learning Center is not being managed and operated by a competent and trained manager,

Franchisor is authorized, but is not obligated, to immediately assume management of the Learning Center until an approved and trained transferee can assume operations. Revenues from operation of the Learning Center during the period of management by Franchisor shall be used by Franchisor to meet any and all expenses of Franchisee's Learning Center including, without limitation, the weekly compensation, travel and living expenses of any of Franchisor's employees or designees. Operation of Franchisee's Learning Center during any period of management by Franchisor pursuant to this subparagraph (a) shall be for and on behalf of Franchisee, provided that Franchisor shall only have a duty to utilize its best efforts and shall not be liable for any debts, obligations or losses incurred by the Learning Center during any period in which it is managed by Franchisor.

# 6.03 Right of First Refusal.

In the event Franchisee desires to make any sale, assignment or other transfer referred to in Section 6.01, Franchisee shall first obtain a bona fide, executed written offer from responsible and fully disclosed purchaser(s) and submit an exact copy of this offer to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right, exercisable by written notice delivered to Franchisee, to accept this offer on equal terms and price at any time within thirty (30) days following receipt by Franchisor of the exact copy of Franchisee's offer. If Franchisor does not exercise its right of first refusal, Franchisee may complete the proposed sale, assignment or other transfer pursuant to and on the terms of the offer, and in compliance with all provisions of Section 6.01. In the event the sale, assignment or other transfer is not completed within sixty (60) days after delivery of the offer to Franchisor or there is a material change in the terms of the sale, assignment or other transfer, Franchisor shall again have a right of first refusal herein provided.

(a) <u>Transfer of Major Interest</u>. In the event Franchisee desires to make any sale, assignment or other transfer of more than 50% of the capital stock or of the partnership interest of a corporation, partnership or other entity organized and wholly owned by Franchisee to which this Agreement has been assigned pursuant to Section 6.04, then Franchisor shall also have the option to purchase not only the interest being transferred but also the remaining interest so that Franchisor shall have a right of first refusal to purchase 100% of the ownership interest. The value of this 100% interest shall be determined on a basis proportionate to the price of the interest initially offered. For example, if a 60% interest is being sold by Franchisee for \$1,000,000 then the value of the 100% interest would be \$1,666,666.

#### 6.04 Assignment to Franchisee Entity.

It is understood that Franchisee may assign and delegate this Agreement and Franchisee's rights and obligations hereunder to a corporation, partnership or limited liability company organized by Franchisee for that purpose in which Franchisee owns and controls a majority of the equity and voting power of all issued and outstanding stock or of the general partnership or ownership interest, and without complying with Sections 6.01 and 6.03, provided that:

(a) All shareholders (or partnership partners or owners) are identified to and approved by Franchisor; and

- (b) The articles of incorporation, articles of partnership, partnership agreement, bylaws or other organizational documents of the corporation, partnership or limited liability company recite that the issuance and assignment of any interest therein is restricted by the terms of Sections 6.01 and 6.03 of this Agreement, and in the case of a corporation all issued and outstanding stock certificates of the corporation shall bear a legend reflecting or referring to the restrictions of Sections 6.01 and 6.03 in a form satisfactory to counsel for Franchisor; and
- (c) Each shareholder, officer, director, owner or partner of Franchisee shall execute an agreement provided by Franchisor undertaking to be bound jointly and severally by the provisions of this Agreement; and
- (d) Franchisee shall furnish to Franchisor at any time upon request, in form as Franchisor may require, a list of all shareholders, directors, officers, owners or partners of Franchisee reflecting their respective interests in and positions with Franchisee; and
- (e) The corporation, partnership or limited liability company shall at no time engage, directly or indirectly, in any similar business activity other than those directly related to the operation of Franchisee's Learning Center, pursuant to all terms and conditions of this Agreement; and
- (f) Franchisor shall be given written notice of the assignment and delegation, and upon compliance with the foregoing, the corporation, partnership or limited liability company shall have all of said rights and obligations, and the term "Franchisee" as used herein shall refer to the corporation or partnership.

Each reference to a corporation in this Section 6.04 shall be deemed to also refer to a limited liability company and any other entity or organization similar thereto. Each reference to the organizational documents, shareholders, directors and officers of a corporation shall be deemed to refer to the functional equivalents of such organizational documents, shareholders, directors and officers, as applicable, in the case of a limited liability company or any other entity or organization similar thereto.

#### 6.05 Consent Does Not Constitute Waiver.

Franchisor's consent to an assignment or transfer of any interest subject to the restrictions of this Article shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have against the transferring party, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of Franchisor right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms or conditions hereof by transferee.

#### 6.06 Transfer or Assignment By Franchisor.

This Agreement is fully assignable by Franchisor in whole or in part and shall inure to the benefit of any assignee or other legal successor to the interest of Franchisor herein.

#### ARTICLE 7. ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS AND PROVISIONS

#### 7.01 Independent Status.

This Agreement and the activities pursuant hereto do not and will not be deemed to create any relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee or any other party of agency, partnership, joint venture or employment, or any other relationship except that of franchisor and franchisee. Franchisee is and shall be solely an independent contractor and shall at no time act or represent itself to be acting in any other capacity. Without limiting the foregoing, Franchisee shall not incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of Franchisor; shall only contract or otherwise incur any obligation or indebtedness only in Franchisee's own name, which, if Franchisee is a corporation or partnership, shall at no time include Franchisor's name or Mark or any part thereof, or be so similar thereto so as to be in any way misleading; and Franchisee shall otherwise comply with the provisions of Section 4.07 hereof.

# 7.02 Whole Agreement; Amendments; Construction.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties, except for such additional agreements and understandings as may, concurrently herewith or hereafter be set forth in written agreements executed by both parties hereto. This Agreement shall be effective only when executed by a duly authorized officer of Franchisor. Subject to Franchisor's right to modify its Manuals as provided herein, no amendment or addition to this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing, executed by a duly authorized officer of Franchisor and by Franchisee. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party hereto. The headings of the several sections and paragraphs hereof are for convenience only and do not define, limit or construe the contents of the sections or paragraphs. This Agreement shall be executed in multiple copies, each of which shall be deemed an original.

## 7.03 No Representations or Warranties

Franchisee specifically recognizes and acknowledges that the success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement depends largely upon the abilities of Franchisee as an independent businessperson, as well as other factors, such as market and economic conditions beyond the control of Franchiser and Franchisee.

#### 7.04 Severability; Additional Assurances.

Should any provision of this Agreement be for any reason held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed restricted in application to the extent required to render it valid and the remainder hereof shall in no way be affected and shall remain valid and enforceable for all purposes, both parties hereto declaring that they would have executed this Agreement without inclusion of the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. If any of the provisions of this contract are inconsistent with applicable state law, then the state law shall apply. Each party agrees to execute and deliver to the other any further documents that may be reasonably required to fully effectuate the provisions hereof. Although printed provisions of this Agreement were prepared by Franchisor, this Agreement shall not be construed either for or against Franchisor or

Franchisee, but shall be construed in accord with the general tenor of the language to reach a fair and equitable result.

#### 7.05 Remedies.

It is recognized that performance by Franchisee of Franchisee's obligations hereunder is of unique value, and that non-performance or breach thereof would result in irreparable damage to Franchisor. Accordingly Franchisee agrees that in the event of any nonperformance or breach, Franchisor shall have the right to secure injunctive or other equitable relief, without bond, but upon due notice, to prevent same, and Franchisee consents to the granting of this relief, in addition, and without prejudice, to any other remedies available to Franchisor at law. Subject to this right on the part of Franchisor, and without prejudice thereto, and subject to any applicable provision of law to the contrary, it is agreed that any controversy or dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement and activities hereunder, including any termination or purported termination hereof, shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules, as then in effect, of the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered by the Arbitrator(s) may be entered in any state or federal court having jurisdiction. It is the intent of the parties that no claim arbitrated hereunder shall be arbitrated on a class wide basis. In the event that this Agreement is terminated by Franchisor on account of a claimed default hereunder by Franchisee, and without waiving any of Franchisor's rights under Section 7.09 below, any objection or claim by Franchisee arising there from shall be deemed waived and released unless Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor written demand for arbitration within twenty (20) days following the effective date of the termination; provided, however, that this waiver and release of claims shall not apply with respect to any claim arising under applicable state law. The failure of either party to object to, or exercise any remedy on account of, any failure or performance hereunder by the other party shall not constitute a waiver of any other failure of performance of the same or different nature.

#### 7.06 Notices.

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, shall be deemed given when received, and shall be personally delivered to or sent by overnight courier or by email (provided the sender has confirmation of receipt) addressed as follows:

To Franchisor:	Afficient Academy of America, Inc.		
	1054 S. De Anza Blvd., Suite 201		
	San Jose, California 95129		
	Attn: Vice President of Operations		
	Email: franchise@afficienta.com		
To Franchisee:			

Either party may change the address for notices by written notice to the other in accordance with the foregoing.

# 7.07 Successors and Assigns; Governing Law; Jurisdiction

Subject to the above provisions concerning assignments and transfers by Franchisee, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors, assigns and legal representatives of the parties hereto.

Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051 et. seq.) or other applicable state law, this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the State where Franchisor's principal business address is then located. If a claim is asserted in any legal proceeding, or in arbitration, Franchisee agrees all actions must be commenced in the state, and in the state or federal court of general jurisdiction (or arbitration site) closest to where Franchisor's principal business address is then located, and Franchisee irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of those courts and waives any objection Franchisee might have to either jurisdiction or venue in those courts.

#### 7.08 Limitation of Claims

Except for claims arising from Franchisee's nonpayment or underpayment of amounts due Franchisor, and subject to Section 7.05 hereof, any and all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement will be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense or set off unless a proceeding is commenced within one (1) year from the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such claims or ninety (90) days from either the actual discovery of the facts giving rise to such claims or from the date on which the party asserting the claim knew or should have, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, discovered such facts.

## 7.09 Waiver of Punitive Damages

Franchisor and Franchisee (and its owners and guarantors, if applicable) hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to or clam for any punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree that in the event of a dispute between them each shall be limited to the recovery of any actual damages sustained.

#### 7.10 Acknowledgment of Understanding; Opportunity to Consult

Franchisee acknowledges reading and understanding this Agreement, including all attachments hereto, and agreements relating thereto, if any, and that Franchisor has accorded Franchisee ample time and opportunity to consult with an attorney or other advisor of Franchisee's own choosing about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have e	executed this Agreement as of this day of
, 20	
Afficient Academy of America, Inc.	Afficient Academy Franchisee

("Franchisor")	("Franchisee")
By:	By:
Title	Print Name:

Exhibit 1 to Afficient Academy Franchise Agreement

The Designated Territory referred to in subparagraph (b) of Section 2.01 is:

# **EXHIBIT C**

(Intentionally Blank)

# EXHIBIT D AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

#### AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

We intend to register this Disclosure Document as a "franchise" in some or all of the following states, in accordance with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, we will designate the following state offices or officials as our agents for service of process in these states:

CALIFORNIA Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation 320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 Los Angeles, California 90013–2344 (213) 576–7500 Toll free: (866) 275-2677	MICHIGAN Dept. of Commerce, Corp'ns & Securities Bureau 670 Law Building 525 West Ottawa Lansing, Michigan 48913 (517) 373–7117
HAWAII Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division Securities Compliance Branch 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 586-2722	MINNESOTA Commissioner of Commerce 85 7 <sup>th</sup> Place East, Suite 500 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 (612) 296–4026
ILLINOIS Illinois Attorney General 500 South Second Street Springfield, Illinois 62706 (217) 782–4465	NEW YORK New York State Department of State Division of Corporations Second Floor 41 State Street Albany, New York 12231
INDIANA Indiana Secretary of State 201 State House Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 (317) 232–6681	NORTH DAKOTA  North Dakota Securities Commissioner 600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol Fifth Floor Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
MARYLAND Maryland Securities Commissioner 200 St. Paul Place Baltimore, Maryland 21202–2020 (410) 576–6360	RHODE ISLAND Director of Department of Business Regulation John O. Pastore Center Bldg. 69, First Floor 1511 Pontiac Avenue, Cranston, RI 02920 (401) 277–3048

SOUTH DAKOTA Director of Division of Securities 445 E. Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501–2017 (605) 773–4013	WASHINGTON Director of Department of Financial Institutions General Administration Building Securities Division – 3rd Floor West 150 Israel Road S.W. Tumwater, Washington 98501 (360) 902–8760
VIRGINIA Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 1300 East Main Street Richmond, Virginia 23219 (804) 371–9733	WISCONSIN Commissioner of Securities 345 West Washington Avenue, Fourth Floor Madison, Wisconsin 53703 (608) 261–9555

# EXHIBIT E

# **STATE ADMINISTRATORS**

#### STATE ADMINISTRATORS

We intend to register this Disclosure Document as a "franchise" in some or all of the following states, in accordance with the applicable state laws. If and when we pursue franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, the following are the state administrators responsible for the review, registration, and oversight of franchises in these states:

CALIFORNIA Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation Department of Department of Financial Protection and Innovation 320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 Los Angeles, California 90013–2344 (213) 876–7500 Toll free: (866) 275-2677	MICHIGAN Consumer Protection Div., Franchise Section Attn: Kathryn A. Barron 670 G. Mennen Williams Building Lansing, Michigan 48913 (517) 373–7117
HAWAII Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division Securities Compliance Branch 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 586-2722	MINNESOTA Commissioner of Commerce Department of Commerce 85 7 <sup>th</sup> Place East, Suite 500 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 (651) 296–4026
ILLINOIS Robert Tingler, Esq. Chief, Franchise Division 500 South Second Street Springfield, Illinois 62706 (217) 782–4465	NEW YORK Bureau of Investor Protection and Securities New York State Department of Law 120 Broadway, 23rd Floor New York, New York 10271 (212) 416–8211
INDIANA Secretary of State Franchise Section 302 West Washington, Room E–111 Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 (317) 232–6681	NORTH DAKOTA North Dakota Securities Department 600 Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol Fifth Floor, Dept. 414 Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510 (701) 328-4712

MARYLAND Office of the Attorney General Securities Division 200 St. Paul Place Baltimore, Maryland 21202–2020 (410) 576–6360	RHODE ISLAND Securities Division Department of Business Regulation John O. Pastore Center Bldg. 69, First Floor 1511 Pontiac Avenue Cranston, RI 02920 (401) 277–3048
SOUTH DAKOTA Director of Division of Securities 445 E. Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501–2017 (605) 773–4013	WASHINGTON Department of Financial Institutions General Administration Building Securities Division – 3rd Floor West 150 Israel Road S.W. Tumwater, Washington 98501 (360) 902–8760
VIRGINIA Director, Securities and Retail Franchising Div. State Corporation Commission 1300 East Main Street Richmond, Virginia 23219 (804) 371–9051	WISCONSIN Office of the Commissioner of Securities 345 West Washington Avenue, Fourth Floor Madison, Wisconsin 53703 (608) 261–9555

# EXHIBIT F SAMPLE FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE

#### SAMPLE FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE

This General Release (this "Release") is made by	[NAME OF
FRANCHISEE] ("Franchisee") in favor of Afficient Academy of Amo	erica, Inc. ("Franchisor")
and certain related parties as set forth below effective as of	, 2 (the
"Effective Date").	
Franchisor is the franchisor of Afficient Academy Learning Centers ("A	fficient Academy").
Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise	e Agreement dated
, (the "Franchise Agreement") for the o	peration of an Afficient
Academy located at (the "Franchised ]	
Franchisee is seeking to renew the franchise or is seeking Franchisor's and convey the rights under the Franchise [NAME OF PURCHAS]	e Agreement to SER] ("Purchaser") as
provided in the Franchise Agreement. A release of all claims agains	
parties by Franchisee is one of the conditions that must be satisfied in o	
the franchise under the Franchise Agreement. [OR: The current	
Agreement has not expired, and Franchisee wishes to enter into a n	·
with Franchisor for the Franchised Business that would replace th	_
and provide Franchisee with a new ten (10) year franchise term and	•
Franchisor is willing to enter into a new franchise agreement consideration of Franchisee entering into this Release.]	nt with Franchisee in

Therefore, in consideration of these premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Franchisee agrees as follows:

- 1. Release by Franchisee. Franchisee for Franchisee and Franchisee's respective predecessors, shareholders, officers, directors, members, partners, owners, successors, assigns, affiliates, family members, heirs, executors, administrators and personal representatives and anyone claiming through or under them (collectively the "Franchisee Parties"), hereby releases, acquits and forever discharges Franchisor and its predecessors, successors, assigns, parent company, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, stockholders, employees, attorneys, accountants and other representatives (collectively the "Franchisor Parties") of and from any and all claims, demands, debts, disputes, obligations, damages, causes of action and claims for relief of any nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown, whether arising under the Franchise Agreement, or under common law, equitable principles, statute (including but not limited to the California Franchise Investment Law), regulation or otherwise, whether fixed or contingent, which the Franchisee Parties or any of them have against the Franchisor Parties by reason of any matter, event or cause whatsoever occurring at any time before, through and including the Effective Date of this Release stated above.
- 2. Waiver of Civil Code Section 1542. Franchisee for Franchisee and the Franchisee Parties hereby expressly waives any rights or benefits available under the provisions of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code or any similar law of any state that provides for

the survival of claims notwithstanding a general release. Civil Code Section 1542 provides as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims that the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by Franchisee must have materially affected Franchisee's settlement with the debtor.

Franchisee understands this statutory language, and notwithstanding this or any similar statute or law, Franchisee freely elects to specifically waive these rights and hereby does release the Franchisor Parties from all claims whether known or unknown at the time of this Release. Franchisee understands that if the facts relied upon in making this Release are discovered hereafter to be other than or different from the facts now believed to be true, or if additional facts are discovered, Franchisee expressly accepts the risk of such possible different or additional facts and agrees that this Release shall remain effective notwithstanding any such discoveries. Franchisee is not deciding to make this Release or waiver predicated on any factual representations of Franchisor concerning the nature of any claims released, past or future events or any other matters.

- **3. Representations.** Franchisee represents, warrants, agrees and acknowledges:
  - a. That Franchisee had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel in making this Release and that Franchisee has read and fully understands the terms of this Release and that this Release was entered into freely and voluntarily;
  - b. That the validity of this Release is an essential condition to and in consideration of Franchisor's consent to the transfer or renewal of the franchise [OR: Franchisor's offer of a new franchise agreement and franchise term prior to expiration of the Franchise Agreement];
  - c. That in addition to this Release, there are other conditions that must be satisfied in order to have the franchise transfer or renewal approved by Franchisor as required in the Franchise Agreement and that Franchisee understands and agrees to these conditions; and
  - d. That Franchisee is the sole owner of all of the claims released hereby and has not heretofore assigned any interest in the franchise, the Franchise Agreement, or any of the claims released hereby.
- 4. Entire Agreement. This Release contains the entire agreement by Franchisee with respect to the release required for [the applicable transaction]. All prior discussions, negotiations, and representations concerning this matter are superseded by this Release.
- 5. Governing Law. This Release will be governed by the laws of California.
- 6. Exception to Release. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Release, if Franchisee is entering into a new franchise agreement concurrently with this Release, this

Release is not meant to waive compliance with any provisions of the California Franchise Investment Law that might apply to the acquisition of the new franchise agreement.

# 

# **EXHIBIT G**

# SPOUSAL CONSENT

# SPOUSAL CONSENT AND WAIVER

The	undersigned	(						is a
		[state] resident and is t	the spouse	of			_ ("Fran	
Owner Owner Owner Prince Acad franch transaccomm Learn Consecution Agree France France that is agreed representation of the Consecution of the Con	er"). Spouse acer, or a corporatipal owner (the emy of American and waive action and waive action and Waiven ar to Franchise ement or to exchise Agreement or to exchise Agreement of Spouse did not personally sents and acknown actions.	[state] resident and is to knowledges and under ion, partnership or lime. "Franchisee"), will be at a, Inc. ("Franchisor") at a Afficient Academies any right, now or in interest in the franchise in the Franchise. Spot, Franchisor, as a confusion of the cecute a personal guant. Spouse represents into the consideration for the tot wish to provide this execute the Franchise wledges that Spouse k. Spousal Consent and Verner in the consideration of the cecute the Franchise wledges that Spouse k. Spousal Consent and Verner in the consideration of the cecute the Franchise wledges that Spouse k. Spousal Consent and Verner in the consideration of the cecute the Franchise wledges that Spouse k. Spousal Consent and Verner in the cecute in the cecute the Franchise wledges that Spouse k. Spousal Consent and Verner in the cecute i	the spouse estands that ited liability entering in to acquire by Learning in the future se, the Francisc understadition of guired Spouranty of a and agree is Spousal Agreemen nowingly a	of, contempy comparents a Francis Agranting to the period of Francis and the granting to the consent and the property of the period delibers.	poraneously by in which I nchise Agree cient Acade Spouse her ta commungreement, the tin the absthe Afficient ersonally entenchisee's of the waiver of the waiver of the waiver and Waiver and Waiver the ersonal guarantely elected.	herewi Franchis ement v my Lea eby cor ity prope e Affici- ence of t Acade er into to bligation of this Spouse Spouse ranty. S	_ ("Frankth, Frankse Owner of Affarning Consents to berty or ent Acabethe Frankthe Frankthe Frankthe Frankthe Conditions underse could pouse here."	nchise er is a ficient Center o this quasi demy oousal arning nchise er the on by stands have hereby and to
Waiv comm Agree transf hereb by al	er, Spouse claimunity property ement, the Affi fer approved in y agrees, without of the terms ations thereunder	ms or is awarded in a interest or other or cient Academy Learni writing by Franchiso at further action or execut further action or executive further actio	a legal action with a legal action of the legal action of fire as providuals.	on a connection or in Fraded in thurther ins	nmunity pro n the franc nchisee, oth the Franchise truments, to	chise, the chise, the chise, the chise, the chise, the chise, the chise	nterest, he Fran by way ment, S <sub>l</sub> sonally b	quasinchise of a pouse oound
			Date	d:				

# **EXHIBIT H**

# **OWNER'S GUARANTY**

### AND

# ASSUMPTION OF FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

#### **OWNER'S GUARANTY**

#### AND

#### ASSUMPTION OF FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution by Afficient Academy of America, Inc. ("FRANCHISOR") of that certain Franchise Agreement of even date herewith (the

'Agreement") between FRANCHISOR and
("FRANCHISEE"), or in consideration of and as an inducement to FRANCHISOR's consent to a
transfer by or of FRANCHISEE under the Agreement, each of the undersigned parties
including:
("Guarantors")
hereby personally and unconditionally: (1) guarantees to FRANCHISOR and its successors and
assigns, for the term of the Agreement and thereafter as provided in the Agreement; and agrees
to punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in
the Agreement, and (2) agrees to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of,
each and every term, condition, covenant and provision in the Agreement. Each Guarantor
expressly represents and acknowledges that he or she has read the Agreement and has had the
opportunity to review the same, and this Guaranty, with counsel. Each Guarantor hereby
expressly waives:

- (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by FRANCHISOR, of the foregoing undertakings;
- (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or non performance of any obligations hereby guaranteed;
- (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed;
- (4) any right he or she may have to require that an action be brought against FRANCHISEE, Guarantor or any other person as a condition of liability;
- (5) any requirement that FRANCHISOR proceed against or exhaust its remedies with respect to FRANCHISEE or any other person before demanding payment or performance by Guarantor; and
- (6) any and all other notices and legal or equitable defenses to which he or she may be entitled.

Each Guarantor consents and agrees that:

- (1) his or her direct and immediate liability under this guaranty shall be joint and several;
- (2) he or she shall render any payment or performance required under the Agreement upon demand if FRANCHISEE fails or refuses to do so punctually;

- (3) such liability shall not be contingent or conditioned upon pursuit by FRANCHISOR of any remedies against FRANCHISEE or any other person;
- (4) such liability shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which FRANCHISOR may, from time to time, grant to FRANCHISEE or to any other person, including without limitation the acceptance of any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims, none of which shall in any way modify or amend this guaranty, which shall be irrevocable during the term of the Agreement; and
- (5) the liability and obligations under this Guaranty and Assumption shall not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any modification by FRANCHISEE and FRANCHISOR of the terms or conditions of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has hereunto affixed his signature on the same day and year as the Agreement was executed.

#### GUARANTOR(S)

Name:		
Signature:		
Date:		
Name:		
Signature:		
Date:		

# **EXHIBIT I**

# **ELECTRONIC DEBIT AUTHORIZATION**

# **Electronic Debit Authorization**

# (Authorization Agreement For Pre-Authorized Payments Via Ach Debit Originations)

FRANCHISEE NAME:	FEIN:
FRANCHISEE ("I" or "We") hereby authorize initiate debit entries to my (our) checking below, hereinafter called DEPOSITORY, to	zes ("COMPANY"), to account indicated below in the depository named debit the same to such account.
DEPOSITORY NAME:CITY & STAT	E:
ABA/TRANSIT NO:	ACCOUNT NO.:
	e and effect until the underlying obligations per the EE and COMPANY have been satisfied in full or
and all Depositories and Bank Accounts with Agreement and any renewals. Without limit that if I/we close any bank account, I/we at thereof in writing, (ii) establish another COMPANY all documents necessary for CO from such depository/bank account by ACH agree and declare that this Authorization states.	ement that that this authorization shall apply to any h which I/we open during the term of the Franchise ing the generality of the foregoing, I/we understand re obligated to immediately, (i) notify COMPANY bank account, and (iii) execute and deliver to MPANY to begin and continue making withdrawals debiting or other electronic means. I/we specifically hall be the only written authorization needed form CH debit originations to my/our bank account(s) is.
NAME:	<u>.</u>
Signature:	Dated:
Or for business entity franchisee:	
Signature:	Dated:
As Its:	
Federal Tax ID # or SS#:	

#### **EXHIBIT J**

#### LIST OF ACTIVE FRANCHISEES

#### California

Yanting Sun (Shelley) Ibest Learning Center 3880 Blackhawk Road #300 Danville, CA 925-233-0490 Danville@afficienta.com

Lin Wang
Hanhetaixing US Inc.
43255 Mission Blvd.
Fremont, CA 94539
408-464-0321
Mission-Fremont@afficienta.com

Li Yu 6 Mistral Lane Irvine, CA 92617 949-617-7879 Irvine@affienta.com

Jie Li STEM Academy LLC. 458 Vineyard Place Pleasanton CA 94566 (925)202-5817 Pleasanton@afficienta.com

Jie Li STEM Academy LLC. 458 Vineyard Place Pleasanton CA 94566 (925)202-5817 Foothill-Pleasanton@afficienta.com

Shirley Lin Morning Light Education 2932 Aborn Square Road San Jose, CA 95121 408-406-7481 Evergreen-West@afficienta.com Ping Song
Timmy's Collection
2272 Camino Ramon, Suite 300
San Ramon, CA 94588
408-858-3122
SanRamon@afficienta.com

#### North Carolina

Mingle Zhao
Efficient Education LLC
106 Pheasant Wood Ct.
Morrisville, NC 27560
919-388-1739
Morrisville@afficienta.com

# **EXHIBIT K**

# LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES

No units were transferred, not renewed, reacquired or otherwise ceased operations in 2022.

#### **EXHIBIT** L

# LIST OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS

San Jose Learning Center 1072 S De Anza Blvd. Suite B106 San Jose, CA 95129 408-627-7669 sanjose@afficienta.com

# EXHIBIT M STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

#### **State Effective Dates**

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State	Effective Date
California	Pending

Other states may require registration, filing or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.

# **EXHIBIT N**

# **RECEIPTS**

#### ITEM 23 RECEIPT

#### (YOUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Afficient Academy of America, Inc. offers you a franchise, we must provide this disclosure document to you fourteen (14) calendar days before you sign a binding agreement or make a payment to us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale except:

If we offer you a franchise subject to the franchise laws of Indiana or Michigan, we must provide this disclosure document to you by the earliest of:

- 1. Ten business days before signing of a binding agreement; or
- 2. Ten business days before payment to us; or
- 3. Fourteen calendar days before signing a binding agreement or making a payment to us.

If we offer you a franchise subject to the franchise laws of New York or Oklahoma, we must provide this disclosure document to you by the earliest of:

- 1. The first personal meeting to discuss our franchise; or
- 2. Ten business days before signing of a binding agreement; or
- 3. Ten business days before payment to us; or
- 4. Fourteen calendar days before signing a binding agreement or making a payment to us.

If Afficient Academy of America, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and your state agency.

The name, principal address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is Jiayuan Fang, 1054 S. De Anza Blvd, Suite 201, San Jose, CA 95129. (408) 642-1012

Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit D.

State	<b>Issuance Date</b>	Effective
FTC	March 21, 2023	March 21, 2023
California	March 21, 2023	Pending

This Disclosure Document includes the following exhibits:

Exhibit A Exhibit B Exhibit C	Financial Statements Franchise Agreement None	
Exhibit D	Agents for Service of Process	
Exhibit E	State Administrators	
Exhibit F	Sample General Release	
Exhibit G	Spousal Consent	
Exhibit H	Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Franchisee'	s Obligations
Exhibit I	Electronic Debit Authorization	
Exhibit J	List of Active Franchisees	
Exhibit K	List of Former Franchisees	
Exhibit L	List of Company-Owned Outlets	
Exhibit M	State Effective Dates	
Exhibit N	Receipts	
Date:	Signature:	Printed

Name:\_\_\_\_

Name:\_\_\_\_\_

Printed

KEEP THIS COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_ Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

### ITEM 23 RECEIPT

#### (OUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Afficient Academy of America, Inc. offers you a franchise, we must provide this disclosure document to you fourteen (14) calendar days before you sign a binding agreement or make a payment to us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale except:

If we offer you a franchise subject to the franchise laws of Indiana or Michigan, we must provide this disclosure document to you by the earliest of:

- 1. Ten business days before signing of a binding agreement; or
- 2. Ten business days before payment to us; or
- 3. Fourteen calendar days before signing a binding agreement or making a payment to us.

If we offer you a franchise subject to the franchise laws of New York or Oklahoma, we must provide this disclosure document to you by the earliest of:

- 1. The first personal meeting to discuss our franchise; or
- 2. Ten business days before signing of a binding agreement; or
- 3. Ten business days before payment to us; or
- 4. Fourteen calendar days before signing a binding agreement or making a payment to us.

If Afficient Academy of America, Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and your state agency.

The name, principal address and telephone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is Jiayuan Fang, 1054 S. De Anza Blvd, Suite 201, San Jose, CA 95129. (408) 642-1012

Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit D.

State	Issuance Date	Effective
FTC	March 21, 2023	March 21, 2023
California	March 21, 2023	Pending

This Disclosure Document includes the following exhibits:

Exhibit A	Financial Statements	
Exhibit B	Franchise Agreement	
Exhibit C	None	
Exhibit D	Agents for Service of Process	
Exhibit E	State Administrators	
Exhibit F	Sample General Release	
Exhibit G	Spousal Consent	
Exhibit H	Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Franchise	ee's Obligations
Exhibit I	Electronic Debit Authorization	
Exhibit J	List of Active Franchisees	
Exhibit K	List of Former Franchisees	
Exhibit L	List of Company-Owned Outlets	
Exhibit M	State Effective Dates	
Exhibit N	Receipts	
	•	
Data	G' a markana a	Doings 1
Date:	Signature:	Printed
		Name:
Date:	Signature:	Printed
		Nama: